

# **JULY 5, 2022 - 7:00 PM**

# AGENDA BUDGET COMMITTEE PURSUANT TO RESOLUTION NO. 08-100, RULES I, II, AND III

#### I. COMMUNICATIONS

#### II. RESOLUTIONS, MOTIONS, AND NOTICES

- 1. Resolution adopting updated Schedule A Addendum and Schedule B Addendum to the Chemung County Deferred Compensation Model Plan Document
- 2. Resolution authorizing apportionment of mortgage tax to various tax districts
- 3. Resolution approving pursuant to Section 268 of the County Law, and increase in cost of an increase and improvement of the facilities of the Chemung County Sewer District No. 1 in and for said county at a new total maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000 (\$101,050,000 allocated to the District)
- 4. Resolution authorizing an additional \$31,744,596 bonds of the County of Chemung, New York, to pay costs of certain improvements for Chemung County Sewer District No. 1 in and for said County
- 5. Resolution approving, pursuant to Section 268 of County Law, an increase in cost of an increase and improvement of the facilities of the Chemung County Elmira Sewer District in and for said county at a new total maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000 (\$133,950,000 allocated to the District)
- 6. Resolution authorizing an additional \$43,255,404 bonds of the County of Chemung, New York, to pay costs of certain improvements for the Chemung County Elmira Sewer District in and for said county
- 7. Resolution authorizing certain applications for and disbursement of Community Development Funds (Legislature)

#### III. OLD BUSINESS

1. ARPA Grant follow-up - Attorney to the Legislature

#### IV. NEW BUSINESS

#### V. ADJOURNMENT



#### CHEMUNG COUNTY ROUTE SLIP \* PERSONNEL REQUISITION

Resolution adopting updated Schedule A Addendum and Schedule B Addendum to the Chemung County Deferred Compensation Model Plan Document

Resolution #:

Slip Type: OTHER

SEQRA status

State Mandated False

Explain action needed or Position requested (justification):

On 12/31/21 external auditors recommended the Deferred Compensation Board review the Model Plan Document for employees of Chemung County. The Deferred Compensation Board held meetings to review the Model Plan Document. The attached documents include updates to Schedule A Addendum; and, Schedule B Addendum is new (the CARES Act and SECURE Act requires the committee adopt a new schedule).

| CREATION:           |           |                      |                  |  |
|---------------------|-----------|----------------------|------------------|--|
| Date/Time:          |           | Department:          | Department:      |  |
| 6/9/2022 3:35:33 PM |           | County Executive     | County Executive |  |
|                     |           |                      |                  |  |
| APPROVALS:          |           |                      |                  |  |
| Date/Time:          | Approval: | Department:          |                  |  |
| 6/9/2022 3:44 PM    | Approved  | County Executive     |                  |  |
| 6/15/2022 10:05 AM  | Approved  | Budget and Research  |                  |  |
| 6/22/2022 9:33 AM   | Approved  | Legislature Chairman |                  |  |

| ATTACHMENTS:  |  |            |  |  |  |
|---|--|------------|--|--|--|
| Name:   | Description:   | Type:      |  |  |  |
| Model_Plan_Document_SPRING_2022.pdf                   | Model Plan Document                                  | Cover Memo |  |  |  |
| Deferred Comp Model Plan Document -<br>Schedule B.pdf | Schedule B (CARES Act and SECURE Act Plan Provisions | Cover Memo |  |  |  |

# Plan Document

for the

# DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES OF COUNTY OF CHEMUNG<sup>1</sup>

(1-1-2022)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> A Public Employer that is not a participating employer in the Deferred Compensation Plan for Employees of the State of New York and Other Participating Jurisdictions or the sponsor of any other eligible deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of the Code applicable to governmental employers described in Section 457(e)(1)(B) of the Code may adopt this Plan by complying with the procedures set forth in the Regulations. The Effective Date is the date of adoption of this Plan or of this Amendment and Restatement of the Plan. The Employer should delete this footnote from the adopted Plan document.

[Amended and Restated as of the Effective Date]

# Deferred Compensation Plan for Employees of COUNTY OF CHEMUNG Plan Document

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

|            |  | Page |
|------------|--|------|
| Section 1  | Definitions  | 2    |
| Section 2  | Participation  | 9    |
| Section 3  | Amounts Deferred or Contributed  | 10   |
| Section 4  | Investment of Amounts Deferred or<br>Contributed and Rollover Contributions    | 13   |
| Section 5  | Rollovers  | 17   |
| Section 6  | Accounts and Records of the Plan   | 19   |
| Section 7  | Withdrawals for Unforeseeable Emergencies; Withdrawals of Small Amounts; Loans | 21   |
| Section 8  | Distributions from the Plan and other Eligible Retirement Plans                | 24   |
| Section 9  | Designation of Beneficiaries   | 31   |
| Section 10 | Qualified Domestic Relations Orders  | 32   |
| Section 11 | Administration   | 33   |
| Section 12 | Amendment or Termination   | 37   |
| Section 13 | General Limitations and Provisions   | 38   |
| Schedule A |  | S-1  |

# Deferred Compensation Plan for Employees of COUNTY OF CHEMUNG Plan Document

#### **PURPOSE**

The purpose of the Plan is to encourage Employees to make and continue careers with the Employer by providing Employees with a convenient way to save on a regular and long-term basis and thereby provide for their retirement as set forth herein. The Employer adopted this Plan by complying with the procedures set forth in the Regulations.

A Participant's benefit under the Plan is limited to the Plan Benefit, and the value of the Plan Benefit will depend upon the investment results achieved by the Investment Options in which the Participant chooses to invest. Each Participant shall be 100 percent vested at all times in his or her Plan Benefit in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

In accordance with Section 457 of the Code, all amounts of Compensation deferred or contributed under the Plan, all property and rights purchased with such amounts and all income attributable to such amounts, and all other property and rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of Participants and their Beneficiaries and Alternate Payees pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

The Plan and the Trust Agreement are intended to satisfy the requirements for an eligible deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of the Code applicable to governmental employers described in Section 457(e)(1)(B) of the Code, and shall be construed and administered accordingly. To the extent that any term of the Plan is inconsistent with the provisions of Section 457 of the Code applicable to governmental employers, the inconsistent term shall, to the fullest extent possible, be treated for all purposes of the Plan as amended or reformed to conform to the applicable provisions of Section 457 of the Code.

Except as otherwise provided herein, this amendment and restatement of the Plan is effective as of the Effective Date.

# SECTION 1 DEFINITIONS

When used herein, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

- 1.1 "Account" means each separate account established and maintained for an Account Participant under the Plan, including, as applicable, each Before-Tax Deferral Account, Roth Account (if applicable), Rollover Account, Alternate Payee Account and Beneficiary Account.
- 1.2 "<u>Account Participant</u>" means each Participant, Beneficiary, Surviving Spouse, Alternate Payee or other individual with an Account.
- 1.3 "<u>Administrative Service Agency</u>" means an Administrative Service Agency as defined in the Regulations selected by the Committee to provide services in respect of the Plan.
- 1.4 "<u>Alternate Payee</u>" means any spouse, former spouse, child or other dependent of a Participant who is recognized by a Qualified Domestic Relations Order as having a right to receive all, or a portion of, the Plan Benefit with respect to such Participant.
- 1.5 "<u>Alternate Payee Account</u>" means the Account established for an Alternate Payee pursuant to a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.
- 1.6 "Amounts Deferred or Contributed" means the aggregate of Compensation deferred or contributed by a Participant pursuant to Sections 3.1 and 3.2, including Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions (if applicable).
- 1.7 "<u>Before-Tax Deferral Account</u>" means the Account or Accounts established under the Plan to record a Participant's Before-Tax Deferrals, and the income, gains and losses credited thereto. A Beneficiary Account or Alternate Payee Account corresponding to the deceased or relevant Participant's Before-Tax Deferrals may also be referred to as a Before-Tax Deferral Account.
- 1.8 "<u>Before-Tax Deferrals</u>" means that part of a Participant's Compensation which is deferred into the Plan and is not includable in the Participant's taxable income which, in the absence of a Participant's election to defer such Compensation under Section 3.1, would have been paid to the Participant and would have been includable in the Participant's taxable income.
- 1.9 "Beneficiary" means the beneficiary or beneficiaries designated by a Participant or Surviving Spouse of a Participant pursuant to Section 9 to receive the amount, if any, payable under the Plan upon the death of such Participant or Surviving Spouse.
- 1.10 "Beneficiary Account" means the Account established for a Beneficiary in accordance with Section 6.2.

- 1.11 "<u>Business Day</u>" means, subject to Section 4.4(b), any day (measured in accordance with State time) on which the New York Stock Exchange is open for the trading of securities.
- 1.12 "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as now in effect or as hereafter amended, and the applicable Treasury Regulations and rulings thereunder. All citations to sections of the Code are to such sections as they may from time to time be amended or renumbered.
- 1.13 "<u>Committee</u>" means the Deferred Compensation Committee appointed by the Employer in accordance with the Regulations to act on behalf of Employer to administer the Plan.

# 1.14 "Compensation" means:

- (a) all compensation for services to the Employer, including salary, wages, fees, commissions and overtime pay that is includible in the Employee's gross income for each Plan Year under the Code;
- (b) any differential wage payments defined in Code Section 3401(h)(2) pursuant to the HEART Act; and
- (c) any accumulated sick pay, accumulated vacation pay and back pay paid to a Participant by his or her Employer, provided that such accumulated sick pay, accumulated vacation pay and back pay is received by the Plan in accordance with the timing requirements of the Treasury Regulations promulgated under Section 457 of the Code.
- 1.15 "<u>Distributee</u>" means (a) an Employee or former Employee, (b) the Surviving Spouse of an Employee or former Employee and (c) the spouse or former spouse of an Employee or former Employee, but only to the extent such spouse or former spouse is an Alternate Payee under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order and only with regard to the interest of such spouse or former spouse.
- 1.16 "<u>Distribution Waiting Period</u>" means 45 days following a Participant's Severance from Employment, or, to the extent that the Committee has designated a different Distribution Waiting Period under Section 8.1(e) of Schedule A, the Distribution Waiting Period as set forth in Section 8.1(e) of Schedule A.
- 1.17 "<u>Earliest Retirement Date</u>" means the earlier of (a) the date on which the Participant Severs from Employment or (b) the date the Participant attains age 50.

# 1.18 "Effective Date" means 12/12/2011.

- 1.19 "Eligible Retirement Plan" means:
  - (a) an individual retirement account described in Section 408(a) of the Code;
  - (b) an individual retirement annuity described in Section 408(b) of the Code;

- (c) a qualified trust under Section 401(a) or 401(k) of the Code;
- (d) an annuity contract or custodial account described in Section 403(b) of the Code;
- (e) an eligible deferred compensation plan described in Section 457 of the Code that is maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, any agency or instrumentality of a state or political subdivision of a state; and
  - (f) a Roth IRA.
- 1.20 "Eligible Rollover Distribution" means all or any portion of the balance of the Plan to the credit of a Distributee or a Beneficiary of a Participant, except that an Eligible Rollover Distribution shall not include (a) any distribution that is (i) one of a series of substantially equal periodic payments (not less frequently than annually) made for the life (or life expectancy) of the Distributee or the joint lives (or joint life expectancies) of the Distributee and the Distributee's Beneficiary or (ii) for a specified period of ten years or more, (b) any distribution to the extent such distribution is required under Section 401(a)(9) of the Code, or (c) any distribution due to an Unforeseeable Emergency.
- 1.21 "Employee" means any individual who receives Compensation for services from the Employer, including any elected or appointed officer or employee of the Employer, and any employee who is included in a unit of employees covered by a negotiated collective bargaining agreement that specifically provides for participation in the Plan. An Employee shall not include an independent contractor, a consultant or any other individual classified by the Employer as not eligible to participate in the Plan.
- 1.22 "Employer" means County of Chemung .2
- 1.23 "<u>Enrollment Date</u>" means, with respect to an Employee who is eligible to enroll or be enrolled in the Plan, any payroll date on which such Employee receives Compensation, or such other date or dates as the Administrative Service Agency may establish either in lieu of, or in addition to, such dates.
- 1.24 "<u>Financial Organization</u>" means a Financial Organization as defined in the Regulations selected by the Committee to provide services in respect of the Plan.
- 1.25 "HEART Act" means the Heroes Earnings Assistance and Relief Tax Act of 2008.
- 1.26 "<u>Includible Compensation</u>" means "includible compensation" as defined in Section 457(e)(5) of the Code.
- 1.27 "<u>Investment Fund</u>" means each of the investment funds made available by the Committee through the Plan in accordance with Section 6.5(b).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Insert the name of the Public Employer adopting this amended and restated Plan. The Employer should delete this footnote from the adopted Plan document.

- 1.28 "<u>Investment Option</u>" means each of the Investment Funds and each other investment option made available by the Committee through the Plan in accordance with Section 6.5(b).
- 1.29 "<u>Loan Grace Period</u>" means 90 days following the due date of a Participant's scheduled repayment of his or her Plan loan, or, to the extent that the Committee has designated a shorter Loan Grace Period under Section 7.3(f) of Schedule A, the Loan Grace Period as set forth in Section 7.3(f) of Schedule A.
- 1.30 "Maximum Annual Number of Partial Distributions" means twelve partial lump sum payments per Plan Year, or, to the extent that the Committee has designated a different Maximum Annual Number of Partial Distributions under Section 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) of Schedule A, the Maximum Annual Number of Partial Distributions as set forth in Section 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) of Schedule A.
- 1.31 "Minimum Installment Amount" means \$100, or, to the extent that the Committee has designated a different Minimum Installment Amount under Section 8.1(c) of Schedule A, the Minimum Installment Amount as set forth in Section 8.1(c) of Schedule A.
- 1.32 "Minimum Lump Sum Amount" means \$100, or, to the extent that the Committee has designated a different Minimum Lump Sum Amount under Section 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) of Schedule A, the Minimum Lump Sum Amount as set forth in Section 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) of Schedule A.
- 1.33 "Normal Retirement Age" means any age designated by a Participant within the following parameters: (i) beginning (A) no earlier than the earliest age at which the Participant has the right to retire under the basic pension plan, if any, in which the Participant participates in connection with his or her service to the Employer and to receive immediate retirement benefits without actuarial or similar reduction because of retirement before some later age specified in such basic pension plan or, (B) in the case of a Participant who does not participate in such basic pension plan, no earlier than age 65, and (ii) ending no later than age 70½. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, a Participant who is a qualified police officer or firefighter (as defined under Section 415(b)(2)(H)(ii)(I) of the Code) may designate a Normal Retirement Age that is earlier than the earliest Normal Retirement Age described above, but in no event may such Normal Retirement Age be earlier than age 40. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, a Participant's designation of a Normal Retirement Age shall not control the date that payment of such Participant's benefits shall commence pursuant to Section 8.
- 1.34 "<u>Participant</u>" means an Employee or former Employee who is not deceased and who has an Account or Rollover Account under the Plan.
- 1.35 "<u>Participation Agreement</u>" means an agreement in writing or in such other form approved by the Committee, pursuant to which the Employee elects to reduce his or her Compensation for future Enrollment Dates and to have amounts deferred or contributed into the Plan on his or her behalf in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

- 1.36 "Plan" means the Deferred Compensation Plan for Employees of the Employer, as the same may be amended from time to time.
- 1.37 "Plan Benefit" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.5.
- 1.38 "Plan Year" means the calendar year.
- 1.39 "Qualified Domestic Relations Order" means any judgment, decree or order, including, approval of a property settlement agreement, that has been determined by the Administrative Service Agency to meet the requirements of a qualified domestic relations order within the meaning of Section 414(p) of the Code.
- 1.40 "Qualified Roth Contribution Program" means a qualified Roth contribution program as defined in Section 402A of the Code.
- 1.41 "<u>Regulations</u>" means the rules and regulations promulgated by the Deferred Compensation Board of the State of New York pursuant to Section 5 of the State Finance Law, as the same may be amended from time to time.
- 1.42 "<u>Required Beginning Date</u>" means April 1 of the calendar year following the later of the calendar year in which the Participant: (a) attains age 70½, or (b) Severs from Employment.
- 1.43 "<u>Review Committee</u>" means the committee designated to review claims to rights or benefits under the Plan in accordance with Section 11.8 and requests for Unforeseeable Emergency withdrawals under Section 7.
- 1.44 "Rollover Account" means the Account or Accounts established and maintained in respect of a Participant or a Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or, if applicable, by a spousal Alternate Payee pursuant to Section 5.2(c).
- 1.45 "Rollover Contribution" means the amount contributed by a Participant or a Beneficiary to a Rollover Account or, if applicable, by an Alternate Payee to an Alternate Payee Account, in accordance with Section 5.2 that the Administrative Service Agency has determined would qualify as an Eligible Rollover Distribution, other than a distribution consisting of contributions to a Roth IRA, and which the Administrative Service Agency has determined may be contributed.
- 1.46 "Roth Account" means the Account or Accounts established under the Plan to record a Participant's Roth Contributions, and the income, gains and losses credited thereto. A Beneficiary Account or Alternate Payee Account corresponding to the deceased or relevant Participant's Roth Contributions may also be referred to as a Roth Account.
- 1.47 "Roth Contributions" means amounts contributed pursuant to Section 3.1 by a Participant to the extent that the Committee has resolved to implement a Roth Program to Section 3.1(c) of Schedule A, which amounts are:

- (a) designated irrevocably by the Participant at the time of the contribution election as Roth Contributions that are being made from Compensation pursuant to Section 3.1(c); and
- (b) treated by the Employer as includible in the Participant's income at the time the Participant would have received that amount in Compensation.
- 1.48 "Roth IRA" has the meaning set forth in Section 408A of the Code.
- 1.49 "Roth Program" means a Qualified Roth Contribution Program within the Plan.
- 1.50 "Section 457 Transfer" means a transfer made into an Account pursuant to Section 5.1.
- 1.51 "Severance from Employment" or "Severs from Employment" means a severance from employment with the Employer within the meaning of Section 457 of the Code.
- 1.52 "State" means the State of New York.
- 1.53 "<u>Surviving Spouse</u>" means the survivor of a deceased Participant to whom such Participant was legally married on the date of the Participant's death.
- 1.54 "<u>Treasury Regulations</u>" means the regulations promulgated by the Treasury Department under the Code, as now in effect or as hereafter amended. All citations to sections of the Treasury Regulations are to such sections as they may from time to time be amended or renumbered.
- 1.55 "<u>Trust Agreement</u>" means an agreement entered into in respect of the Plan between the Committee and one or more Trustees pursuant to which all cash and other rights and properties and all income attributable to such cash and rights and properties are held in trust as such agreement may be amended from time to time.
- 1.56 "<u>Trust Fund</u>" means the assets of the Plan, including cash and other rights and properties arising from Amounts Deferred or Contributed, Section 457 Transfers and Rollover Contributions which are held and administered by the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement.
- 1.57 "<u>Trustee</u>" means the trustee or trustees acting as such under the Trust Agreement, and any successors thereto.
- 1.58 "<u>Unforeseeable Emergency</u>" means a (i) severe financial hardship to the Participant resulting from a sudden and unexpected illness or accident of the Participant or Beneficiary, the Participant's or Beneficiary's spouse, or the Participant's or Beneficiary's dependent, (ii) loss of the Participant's or Beneficiary's property because of casualty, or (iii) other similar extraordinary or unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the control of the Participant or Beneficiary.
- 1.59 "<u>Unit</u>" means a unit measuring the value of an Account Participant's proportionate interest in an Investment Fund.

- 1.60 "<u>USERRA</u>" means the provisions of the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 contained in chapter 43 of title 38 of the United States Code.
- 1.61 "<u>Valuation Date</u>" means each Business Day unless otherwise provided in the Plan or in an agreement between the Committee and a Financial Organization.

# SECTION 2 PARTICIPATION

#### 2.1 Enrollment.

- (a) <u>Eligibility and Enrollment</u>. Each Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Plan as of any Enrollment Date following the date he or she becomes an Employee, and shall commence such participation in the Plan by duly filing a Participation Agreement and any enrollment forms or other pertinent information concerning the Employee and his or her Beneficiary with the Administrative Service Agency in a manner as prescribed by the Committee. With the exception of Participation Agreements filed on or before an Employee's first day of service, no Participation Agreement shall be effective before the first Enrollment Date in the calendar month following the month in which the Participation Agreement is filed with the Administrative Service Agency.
- (b) <u>Initial Enrollment and Subsequent Changes</u>. Each Employee enrolling in the Plan shall provide to the Administrative Service Agency, in a complete and timely manner, at the time of initial enrollment and thereafter if there are any changes, with such information that the Administrative Service Agency determines is necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan or to comply with applicable law. With the exception of Participation Agreements filed on or before an Employee's first day of service, no Participation Agreement or amendment or modification thereto shall be effective before the first Enrollment Date in the calendar month following the month in which the Participation Agreement or such amendment or modification is filed with the Administrative Service Agency.
- 2.2 <u>Voluntary Participation</u>. Participation in the Plan by Employees shall be voluntary.
- 2.3 <u>Cessation of Participation</u>. The participation of an Account Participant shall cease upon payment to the Account Participant of the entire value of his or her Plan Benefit or upon the Account Participant's death prior to such payment.
- 2.4 <u>Corrective Action</u>. If an individual is erroneously included or excluded from participation, corrective action will be taken as soon as administratively practicable to correct such erroneous inclusion or exclusion.

# SECTION 3 AMOUNTS DEFERRED OR CONTRIBUTED

# 3.1 <u>Participant Deferral and Contribution Authorization.</u>

- (a) <u>Initial Authorization</u>. A Participant may elect to defer or contribute Compensation under the Plan by authorizing, on his or her Participation Agreement, regular payroll deductions that do not individually or in the aggregate exceed the limitations of Section 3.2. Unless otherwise designated under Section 3.1(c), any Amounts Deferred or Contributed under this Section 3.1(a) shall be treated as Before-Tax Deferrals. Any initial deferral election shall be effective as soon as administratively practicable, subject to the timing requirements set forth in Sections 2.1(a) and 2.1(b).
- (b) <u>Modifications</u>. A Participant may increase or decrease the rate of deferral or contribution of his or her Compensation, and may make separate elections with respect to the increase or decrease of the rate of his or her Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions (to the extent applicable), within the limitations set forth in Section 3.2, as of any Enrollment Date by duly filing a new or modified Participation Agreement, or such other form authorized for such purpose by the Committee, with the Administrative Service Agency, which shall be effective as soon as administratively practicable, subject to the timing requirements set forth in Sections 2.1(a) and 2.1(b).
- (c) Roth Contributions. To the extent that the Committee has resolved on or after January 1, 2011 to implement a Roth Program pursuant to Section 3.1(c) of Schedule A, a Participant shall be permitted to make Roth Contributions from his or her Compensation by designating a percentage of his or her initial authorization or modified authorization described in Sections 3.1(a) and 3.1(b) as Roth Contributions, which designation shall be effective as soon as administratively practicable for all future payroll periods until modified or suspended, subject to the timing requirements set forth in Sections 2.1(a) and 2.1(b). For the avoidance of doubt, to the extent that the Committee has *not* resolved to implement a Roth Program pursuant to Section 3.1(c) of Schedule A, Participants shall not be permitted to make Roth Contributions and any provisions of the Plan as they relate to Roth Contributions, Roth Accounts, Rollover Contributions from Qualified Roth Contribution Programs and in-Plan rollovers into Roth Accounts shall not apply.
- (d) <u>Discontinuance or Suspension</u>. A Participant may discontinue or temporarily suspend his or her deferrals or contributions, and may make separate elections with respect to the discontinuance or suspension of his or her Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions (to the extent applicable), as of any specified Enrollment Date by giving notice thereof to the Administrative Service Agency. The Administrative Service Agency shall discontinue or suspend the deferral or contribution of Compensation as soon as administratively practicable, subject to the timing requirements set forth in Sections 2.1(a) and 2.1(b).

(e) <u>Deferrals and Contributions After a HEART Act Distribution or Unforeseeable Emergency Withdrawal</u>. A participant's deferrals and contributions will be suspended for a period of six months following a distribution pursuant to the Section 414(u)(12)(B)(i) of the Code and, to the extent that the Committee has resolved to implement a suspension of deferrals after an Unforeseeable Emergency withdrawal pursuant to Section 3.1(e) of Schedule A, after a distribution due to an Unforeseeable Emergency withdrawal.

# 3.2 General Deferral and Contribution Limitations and Catch-Up Limitations.

- (a) <u>In General</u>. The aggregate amount of Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions (to the extent applicable) that may be deferred or contributed by a Participant for any pay period shall be a minimum of \$10 and shall not exceed the lesser of:
  - (i) An amount as may be permitted pursuant to Section 457(e)(15) of the Code, and
  - (ii) 100% of the Participant's Includible Compensation for the Plan Year;

provided, however, the maximum amount that a Participant may defer or contribute for any Plan Year may be calculated after accounting for mandatory and permissive payroll deductions, as reasonably determined by the Employer.

- (b) 457 Catch-Up. Notwithstanding the limitation in Section 3.2(a), a Participant may file an election in the manner required by the Administrative Service Agency to have the catch-up limitation as set forth in Section 3.2(b) apply to the determination of the maximum amount that may be deferred or contributed during one or more of the last three Plan Years ending before attainment of the Participant's Normal Retirement Age. If the catch-up limitation is elected, the maximum aggregate amount of Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions (to the extent applicable) that may be deferred or contributed for each of the Plan Years covered by the election shall not exceed the lesser of:
  - (i) twice the dollar amount set forth in Section 3.2(a); and
  - (ii) the sum of the limitations provided for in Section 3.2(a) for each of the Plan Years the Participant was eligible to participate in the Plan, minus the aggregate amount actually deferred or contributed for such Plan Years (disregarding any amounts deferred or contributed pursuant to Section 3.2(c)).

A Participant may not elect to have Section 3.2(b) apply more than once, whether or not the Participant rejoins the Plan after a Severance from Employment.

(c) Age 50 Catch-Up. All Participants who have attained age 50 before the close of a Plan Year and who are not permitted to defer or contribute additional Compensation pursuant to Section 3.2(b) for such Plan Year, due to the application of any limitation imposed by the Code or the Plan, shall be eligible to make additional catch-up contributions in the form of Before-Tax Deferrals, Roth Contributions or a combination thereof in accordance with, and subject to, the limitations of Section 3.2(c) of the Plan and Section 414(v) of the Code. Age 50 catch-up contributions pursuant to Section 3.2(c) shall not exceed the lesser of:

- (i) the excess of 100% of Participant's Includible Compensation for the Plan Year over the sum of any other Amounts Deferred or Contributed by the Participant for such Plan Year; and
- (ii) an amount as may be permitted by Section 414(v)(2)(B) of the Code.
- (d) <u>Dual Eligibility</u>. Notwithstanding anything in Sections 3.2(b) and (c) to the contrary, if a Participant who is eligible to make an additional catch-up contribution under Section 3.2(c) for a Plan Year in which the Participant has elected to make a catch-up contribution under Section 3.2(b), such Participant is entitled to the greater of:
  - (i) the 457 catch-up contribution amount under Section 3.2(b); and
  - (ii) the age 50 catch-up contribution amount under Section 3.2(c).
- (e) <u>USERRA</u>. Notwithstanding the limitation provided for in Section 3.2(a), any Participant who is entitled to reemployment rights pursuant to USERRA and who is so reemployed in accordance with the provisions of such law may elect to make such additional deferrals or contributions as are permitted or required by USERRA.
- (f) Excess Deferrals and Contributions. In the event that any Amounts Deferred or Contributed under the Plan for any Plan Year exceed the limitations provided for in Section 3.2, any such excess deferrals or contributions shall be distributed to the Participant, with allocable net income, in the following order (unless otherwise directed by the Participant): first, from Before-Tax Deferrals and second, from Roth Contributions (to the extent applicable), as determined in accordance with methods and procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency as soon as practicable after the Administrative Service Agency determines that the amount was an excess deferral or contribution. Distributions under Section 3.2(f) will be reportable as taxable income to the extent required by applicable law.

# SECTION 4 INVESTMENT OF AMOUNTS DEFERRED OR CONTRIBUTED AND ROLLOVER CONTRIBUTIONS

- All Amounts Deferred or Contributed in accordance with Section 3 shall be paid by the applicable Employer as promptly as possible, but in no event later than two Business Days from the applicable payroll date, to the Trust Fund. Thereafter, Amounts Deferred or Contributed shall be invested by the Trustee in accordance with the investment instructions received by the Trustee from the Administrative Service Agency, within two Business Days following receipt by the Trust Fund of such Amounts Deferred or Contributed (or, if later, on the first Business Day coincident with or immediately following receipt by the Trustee of the investment instructions from the Administrative Service Agency related to such Amounts Deferred or Contributed). All such Amounts Deferred or Contributed shall be invested by the Trustee (in accordance with the investment instructions received from the Administrative Service Agency) in the Investment Options provided by one or more Financial Organizations appointed by the Committee in accordance with the Regulations, and shall be held, managed, invested and reinvested in accordance with the applicable agreement entered into by the Committee or the Trustee with each such Financial Organization.
- 4.2 <u>Allocation of Deferrals and Contributions</u>. A Participant who has enrolled in the Plan pursuant to Section 2 shall, by filing a direction with the Administrative Service Agency in writing or in such other manner as the Committee may authorize, specify the percentage (in multiples of one percent) of his or her Amounts Deferred or Contributed, that shall be allocated to each Investment Option made available by the Committee. A Participant's investment allocation elections shall be applied in the same manner to both Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions (to the extent applicable).
- 4.3 <u>Continuation of Deferral and Contribution Allocation</u>. Any deferral and contribution allocation direction given by a Participant shall be deemed to be a continuing direction until changed by the Participant. A Participant may change his or her deferral and contribution allocation direction with respect to future Amounts Deferred or Contributed, as of any Enrollment Date, by giving notice in writing or in such other manner as the Committee may authorize to the Administrative Service Agency prior to any Enrollment Date. Any change to a Participant's deferral and contribution allocation direction shall be applied in the same manner to both Before-Tax Deferrals and Roth Contributions (to the extent applicable). All such future deferrals and contributions shall be invested by the Trustee in the Investment Options in accordance with such changed direction.

# 4.4 <u>Transfer of Assets Among Investment Options.</u>

(a) <u>Transfer of Assets</u>. As of any Valuation Date an Account Participant may direct the Administrative Service Agency, by giving notice in writing or in such other manner as the Committee may authorize, to liquidate his or her interest in any of the Investment Options and transfer the proceeds thereof to one or more other Investment Options in the proportions directed by such Participant. Account Participants may make separate transfer directions for their Before-Tax Deferral Accounts and Accounts relating to Rollover Contributions involving before-tax deferrals and their Roth Accounts and Accounts relating to Rollover Contributions involving

Roth contributions (to the extent applicable). Such direction must be made in accordance with the requirements and procedures established by the Committee and in effect at the time and in a multiple of one percent or one dollar increments of the Account Participant's interest in the applicable Investment Option.

- Committee's Right to Reduce or Deny Transfer Request. If the Trustee or any Financial Organization appointed by the Committee advises the Committee, or the Committee otherwise determines, that it is not reasonably able to prudently liquidate the necessary amount and transfer it from one of the Investment Options to another, the amount to be transferred with respect to each Account Participant who duly requested such a transfer may be reduced in proportion to the ratio which the aggregate amount that the Trustee or the Financial Organization has advised the Committee may not prudently be so transferred bears to the aggregate amount that all Account Participants have duly requested be so transferred. Regardless of any Account Participant's investment direction, no transfer between Investment Options may be made in violation of any restriction imposed by the terms of the agreement between the Committee or the Trustee and a Financial Organization providing any Investment Option or of any applicable law. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 4.4(b) or the Plan to the contrary, the Committee, the Trustee or the Financial Organization shall have the right, without prior notice to any Account Participant, to suspend, for a limited period of time, daily transfers between and among Investment Options for one or more days if the Committee, the Trustee or the Financial Organization determines that such action is necessary or advisable (i) in light of unusual market conditions, (ii) in response to technical or mechanical problems with the Plan's or the Administrative Service Agency's record keeping systems, (iii) in connection with any suspension of normal trading activity on the New York Stock Exchange or other major securities exchange, (iv) as a result of strikes, work stoppages, acts of war or terrorism, insurrection, revolution, nuclear or natural catastrophes or other similar events, losses or interruptions of power, other utility outages or malfunctions, or malfunctions in communications or computer services, in each case, that make it necessary or advisable to suspend trading activity, or (v) in accordance with Section 4.10.
- 4.5 Administrative Actions with Regard to Investment Directions. The Administrative Service Agency shall have the right to decline to implement any investment direction upon its determination that: (i) the person giving the direction is legally incompetent to do so; (ii) implementation of the investment direction would be contrary to the Plan or applicable law or governmental ruling or regulation including, Treasury Regulations; (iii) implementation of the investment direction would be contrary to a court order, including, a Qualified Domestic Relations Order; (iv) implementation of the investment direction would be contrary to the rules, regulations or prospectuses of the Investment Funds; or (v) implementation of the investment direction would be contrary to the investment guidelines or terms of any agreements applicable to the Stable Value Fund or any similar Investment Fund then available under the Plan.
- 4.6 Account Participant Responsibility for Deferrals, Contributions and Investment
  Allocations. Each Participant is solely responsible for the allocation of his or her Amounts
  Deferred or Contributed, and each Account Participant is solely responsible for the investment
  allocation of his or her Account, in each case, in and among the Investment Options. Each
  Account Participant shall assume all risk in connection with the allocation of amounts in and
  among the Investment Options and for any losses incurred or deemed to be incurred as a result of

the Account Participant's allocation or failure to allocate any amount to an Investment Option or any decrease in the value of any Investment Option. Neither the Committee, any Trustee, any Employer nor the Administrative Service Agency is empowered to advise a Participant as to the manner in which the Account Participant's Account shall be allocated among the Investment Options. The fact that a particular Investment Option is available to Participants for investment under the Plan shall not be construed by any Account Participant as a recommendation for investment in such Investment Option. If the Committee elects to make available investment guidance services or investment advice services to Account Participants, such services shall be utilized only at the voluntary election of the Account Participant and shall not limit the Account Participant's responsibility under Section 4.6 for the allocation of his or her Accounts in and among the Investment Options.

- 4.7 <u>Investment Allocation of Alternate Payee Accounts</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, during any period when an Alternate Payee Account is created and segregated on behalf of an Alternate Payee pursuant to a Qualified Domestic Relations Order from the Accounts of the related Participant, the Alternate Payee shall be entitled to direct the allocation of investments of such Alternate Payee Account in accordance with Sections 4.2 and 4.4, as applicable, and shall be subject to the provisions of Sections 4.5 and 4.6, but only to the extent provided in such order. In the event that an Alternate Payee fails to specify an investment direction on the date of creation of the Alternate Payee Account pursuant to Section 4.9, such Alternate Payee's Alternate Payee Account shall be invested in the same manner as the relevant Participant's corresponding Before-Tax Deferral Account, Roth Account (to the extent applicable) and Rollover Accounts on such date and, except as otherwise provided by the Qualified Domestic Relations Order, shall remain invested in accordance with such initial allocation until the Alternate Payee directs otherwise or until such time as the Alternate Payee ceases to have an Alternate Payee Account under the Plan by reason of distribution or otherwise.
- 4.8 <u>Investment Allocation of Beneficiary Accounts</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, during any period following the death of a Participant and prior to distribution of the entire Plan Benefit of such Participant, such Participant's Beneficiary shall be entitled to direct the allocation of investments of such Plan Benefit in accordance with Section 4.4 or, as applicable, his or her proportional interest in such Plan Benefit, in accordance with Section 4.4 and shall be subject to the provisions of Sections 4.5 and 4.6 In the event that a Beneficiary fails to specify an investment direction on the date of creation of the Beneficiary Account pursuant to Section 4.4, such Beneficiary's Beneficiary Account shall be invested in the same manner as the relevant Participant's corresponding Before-Tax Deferral Account, Roth Account (to the extent applicable) and Rollover Accounts on such date.
- 4.9 <u>Initial and Ongoing Investment Allocation with respect to Rollover Contributions and Section 457 Transfers</u>. Unless otherwise directed by the Account Participant, the same deferral and contribution allocation direction applicable to an Account Participant pursuant to Section 4.2 or 4.3, as applicable, shall apply to all Section 457 Transfers and Rollover Contributions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in accordance with procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency, an Account Participant may make an alternative initial allocation election in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 4.4 for any applicable Section 457 Transfer or Rollover Contribution. Thereafter, such Account Participant may direct the Administrative Service Agency to liquidate his or her interest in any of the Investment Options and transfer the

proceeds thereof to one or more other Investment Options in accordance with Section 4.4 (in each case subject to the limitations set forth in Sections 4.5 and 4.6). All Rollover Contributions shall be invested by the Trustee in the Investment Options in accordance with such directions as soon as administratively practicable.

4.10 <u>Fund Mapping or Similar Activity</u>. Notwithstanding anything in Section 4 to the contrary, if the Committee eliminates one or more of the Investment Funds or Investment Options or undertakes similar activity on behalf of the Plan, the Committee shall be authorized to liquidate without an Account Participant's consent and without the need for prior notice to the Account Participant the portion of each Account invested in such eliminated Investment Fund or Investment Option and direct the proceeds of such liquidation in one or more remaining or replacement Investment Funds or Investment Options in accordance with such liquidation and transfer procedures as the Committee may determine to be necessary or advisable in connection with such elimination.

# SECTION 5 ROLLOVERS

5.1 <u>Transfer from Another Governmental 457 Plan</u>. Compensation previously deferred or contributed by (or contributed on behalf of) a Participant, a Beneficiary or a spousal Alternate Payee pursuant to another eligible deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of the Code maintained by another employer described in Section 457(e)(1)(B) of the Code shall be accepted for a plan-to-plan transfer to the Plan by the Trustee in the form and in the manner prescribed by the Committee. All such Section 457 Transfers shall be credited to the applicable Account Participant's corresponding Before-Tax Deferral Account or Roth Account (to the extent applicable), or a combination thereof and shall be invested in accordance with Section 4.9.

#### 5.2 Acceptance of Assets from an Eligible Retirement Plan.

- Rollover Contributions in General. Amounts previously deferred or contributed by (or contributed on behalf of) a Participant, a Beneficiary or a spousal Alternate Payee under another Eligible Retirement Plan (other than a Roth IRA) that (i) are distributed to the Participant, the Beneficiary or the spousal Alternate Payee or (ii) are directly rolled over to the Plan as an eligible rollover distribution from such Eligible Retirement Plan, may be accepted as a Rollover Contribution by the Trustee in the form and in the manner specified by the Administrative Service Agency; provided, that Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program may be contributed only to the extent that the Committee has resolved to implement a Roth Program pursuant to Section 3.1(c) of Schedule A and any such contributions must be directly rolled over to the Plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, other than Rollover Contributions from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program as described in the preceding sentence, the Administrative Service Agency shall not accept any Rollover Contribution, or any portion thereof, that represents deferrals or contributions under another Eligible Retirement Plan that were made from compensation that was included in the Participant, Beneficiary or spousal Alternate Payee's gross income in the year the amounts were deferred or contributed. The Administrative Service Agency may require such documentation from the distributing Eligible Retirement Plan as it deems necessary to effectuate the rollover in accordance with section 402 of the Code and to confirm that such plan is an Eligible Retirement Plan.
- (b) Written Request; Acceptance of Assets. The Administrative Service Agency, in accordance with the Code and procedures established by the Committee, shall, as soon as practicable following its receipt of the written request of a Participant, a Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee, determine whether the Rollover Contribution shall be accepted by the Plan. Any written request filed by a Participant, a Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or a spousal Alternate Payee pursuant to Section 5.2(a) shall set forth the fair market value of such Rollover Contribution and a statement in a form satisfactory to the Administrative Service Agency that the amount to be transferred constitutes a Rollover Contribution. In the event the Administrative Service Agency permits the transfer of the Rollover Contribution, the Trustee shall accept such Rollover Contribution and the transfer of such Rollover Contribution shall be deemed to have been made on the Valuation Date next following the date on which it was paid to the Trust Fund.

- Rollover Account. The Rollover Contribution shall be maintained in a separate, fully vested Rollover Account for the benefit of the contributing Participant or the Beneficiary and, in the case of a spousal Alternate Payee, the Alternate Payee Account, and shall be invested in accordance with the investment direction of the applicable Account Participant pursuant to Section 4.9. All amounts so transferred shall be credited to the Account Participant's Rollover Account or Alternate Payee Account and shall be available for distribution at any time during the Plan Year. No other contributions shall be allocated to the Rollover Account. Any Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program shall be segregated and held in a separately designated and maintained Rollover Account from those amounts not from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program. At the election of the Participant, Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee, any Rollover Contributions or 457 Transfers from an eligible deferred compensation plan under Section 457(b) of the Code may be held in separately designated and maintained Rollover Accounts for 457(b) Rollover Contributions; provided that any such amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program and any such amounts not from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program shall be segregated and held in separately designated and maintained 457(b) Rollover Accounts.
- 5.3 Form of 457 Transfer or Rollover Contribution. Each 457 Transfer and Rollover Contribution shall consist only of (i) cash and (ii) to the extent that the Employer has resolved to adopt a loan program pursuant to Section 7.3 of Schedule A, solely with respect to 457 Transfers and Rollover Contributions from another eligible deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of the Code maintained by a Public Employer or the Deferred Compensation Plan for Employees of the State of New York and Other Participating Jurisdictions, any outstanding loan to the applicable Account Participant under the transferring or distributing 457 plan, provided that (A) such outstanding loan will be subject to the same terms and conditions as in place under the transferring or distributing 457 plan, (B) an Account Participant may not make a Rollover Contribution that includes an outstanding loan unless the entire amount of such Account Participant's plan benefit under the transferring or distributing 457 plan is contributed into the Plan, (C) the source of the outstanding loan disbursement under the transferring or distributing 457 plan must have been from before-tax deferrals, and (D) the Account Participant does not have a loan outstanding, or a defaulted loan that has not yet been repaid, under the Plan at the time of the 457 Transfer or Rollover Contribution.
- 5.4 <u>Rollover of Assets to Purchase Retirement Service Credit</u>. With respect to trustee-to-trustee transfers, a Participant or Beneficiary may elect, in accordance with procedures established by the Committee, to have all or any portion of the value of his or her Account transferred to the trustee of a defined benefit governmental plan as described in Section 414(d) of the Code; *provided, however*, that such transfer is for the purchase of permissive service credit (as defined in Section 415(n)(3)(A) of the Code) under such plan or a repayment of contributions and earnings with respect to a forfeiture of service under such plan.

# SECTION 6 ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS OF THE PLAN

# 6.1 Participant Accounts.

- (a) <u>In General</u>. The Administrative Service Agency shall establish and maintain one or more Accounts for each Participant, including a Before-Tax Deferral Account, a Roth Account (to the extent applicable) and, as necessary, one or more Rollover Accounts (including a segregated Rollover Account relating to contributions from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program, to the extent applicable) with respect to each Participant. Each Account shall record the value of the portion of the Participant's Plan Benefit allocable to that Account, the value of the portion of his or her Plan Benefit, if any, that is invested in each Investment Option (both in the aggregate and by Account) and other relevant data pertaining thereto. With respect to each Participant, all Amounts Deferred or Contributed, all Section 457 Transfers and all Rollover Contributions shall be credited to his or her Before-Tax Deferral Account, Roth Account or Rollover Account, as applicable.
- (b) <u>Written Statement</u>. Each Account Participant shall be furnished with a written statement of his or her Accounts (including the value of the interest he or she has, if any, in each Investment Option and the amount of and explanation for each allocation to or deduction from his or her Accounts) at least quarterly, which statement shall be delivered in a manner prescribed by the Committee.
- 6.2 <u>Beneficiary Accounts</u>. The Administrative Service Agency shall establish and maintain one or more Beneficiary Accounts, including, as applicable, separate Before-Tax Deferral Accounts, Roth Accounts (to the extent applicable), and Rollover Accounts with respect to each Beneficiary of a deceased Participant. Each such Account shall record the value of the portion of the deceased Participant's Plan Benefit allocable to each of the Beneficiary's Accounts, the value of the portion of the Plan Benefit, if any, that is invested in each Investment Option (both in the aggregate and by Account) and other relevant data pertaining thereto. Each Beneficiary shall be furnished with a written statement of his or her Accounts in the same manner set forth in Section 6.1(b).
- Alternate Payee Accounts. The Administrative Service Agency shall establish and maintain one or more Alternate Payee Accounts, including, as applicable, separate Before-Tax Deferral Accounts, Roth Accounts (to the extent applicable), and Rollover Accounts with respect to each Alternate Payee. The Alternate Payee Account shall separately account for all amounts received (i) from the Participant's Rollover Account and (ii) from all amounts rolled into the Plan by a spousal Alternate Payee, pursuant to Section 5.1 or 5.2. Each such Account shall record the value of the portion of the Participant's Plan Benefit allocable to the Alternate Payee's Account, the value of the portion of the Plan Benefit, if any, that is invested in each Investment Option (both in the aggregate and by Account) and other relevant data pertaining thereto. Each Alternate Payee shall be furnished with a written statement of his or her Alternate Payee Accounts in the same manner set forth in Section 6.1(b).
- 6.4 <u>Allocations and Credits</u>. The establishment and maintenance of, or allocations and credits to, the Account of any Account Participant shall not vest in such Account Participant or

Beneficiary of a Participant any right, title or interest in and to any Trust Fund assets or Plan benefits except at the time or times and upon the terms and conditions and to the extent expressly set forth in the Plan and the Trust Agreement and, in the case of an Alternate Payee Account, the express terms of the Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

#### 6.5 Plan Benefit and Trust Fund.

- Plan Benefit Defined. As of the close of each Valuation Date, the Plan Benefit of an Account Participant shall equal the aggregate value of his or her Accounts as of such Valuation Date. As of any date that is not a Valuation Date, a Participant's Plan Benefit shall be calculated in accordance with the previous sentence as of such date, but based upon the value of the Account Participant's Accounts as of the close of the most recent Valuation Date. The value of an Account as of a Valuation Date shall be calculated as of each Valuation Date in accordance with a methodology established by the Committee and reasonably and consistently applied to all similarly situated Account Participants and shall be based upon an Account Participant's aggregate deferrals and contributions to the Trust Fund and distributions and withdrawals from the Trust Fund, the investment performance of the Investment Options in which each Account has been allocated, and any fees, credits or debits allocable to each Account. As of each Valuation Date, each Account shall be adjusted to reflect all Units or dollars credited and Units or dollars distributed, withdrawn or deducted therefrom in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the Trust Agreement. The aggregate Plan Benefit of all Account Participants shall in no event exceed the value of the assets of the Trust Fund and may be less than such value to the extent of any unallocated expense, reserve or similar account maintained as part of the Trust Fund.
- (b) Investment Options and Investment Funds. The Trust Fund shall be invested at the direction of Account Participants, in accordance with Section 4, in and among the Investment Options made available through the Plan from time to time by the Committee. Investment Options may include (i) one or more Investment Funds, (ii) a brokerage account or similar investment window through which Account Participants may direct the investment of their Accounts into Mutual Funds (as defined below) or other available investment products that the Committee designates as available for investment through such window, (iii) an individual participant loan fund to record the value of an outstanding loan made to a Participant in accordance with Section 7.3, and (iv) any other investment alternative that the Committee may make available through the Plan. Investment Funds may consist of open-end investment companies registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended ("Mutual Funds"), separately managed accounts, unregistered commingled funds, group or commingled trusts, or any combination thereof as approved from time to time by the Committee for the investment of the assets of the Trust Fund.

# SECTION 7 WITHDRAWALS FOR UNFORESEEABLE EMERGENCIES; WITHDRAWALS OF SMALL AMOUNTS; LOANS

# 7.1 <u>Distribution for an Unforeseeable Emergency</u>.

- (a) Amount of Distribution for an Unforeseeable Emergency. Upon a showing by a Participant of an Unforeseeable Emergency, the Administrative Service Agency may, permit a payment to be made to the Participant in an amount which does not exceed the lesser of (i) the amount reasonably needed to meet the financial need created by such Unforeseeable Emergency, including estimated income taxes and (ii) an amount which, together with any prior distribution or withdrawal, does not exceed the value of the Participant's Plan Benefit determined as of the most recent Valuation Date. Any such payment shall be made from the Trust Fund by the Trustee upon the direction of the Administrative Service Agency and shall be withdrawn by the Trustee pro rata from the Investment Funds in which the Participant has an interest, unless the Participant specifies in the request for such a payment the portion of the total amount to be withdrawn by the Trustee from each Investment Fund. The Participant shall designate the amount of the distribution that will come from his or her Before-Tax Deferral Account and from his or her Roth Account in accordance with procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency. All payments shall be made in one lump cash sum within sixty days after approval of the request.
- (b) Evidence of Other Relief. A Participant must provide evidence that the amount requested for an Unforeseeable Emergency may not be fully relieved (i) through reimbursement or compensation by insurance or otherwise, (ii) by liquidation of a Participant's other non-Plan assets, to the extent the liquidation of such assets would not itself cause severe financial hardship, or (iii) by cessation of deferrals and contributions under the Plan.

#### 7.2 Distribution from a Small Inactive Account.

- (a) <u>Elective Distribution</u>. An Account Participant with a Plan Benefit, not including the amount in the Participant's Rollover Accounts, of \$5,000 or less (or such greater amount as may be permitted by Section 401(a)(11) of the Code) may elect at any time to receive a lump sum distribution, not to exceed \$5,000 of his or her Account and Rollover Account, which distribution will be made in accordance with procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency, *provided* that both of the following conditions have been met:
  - (i) there has been no Amount Deferred or Contributed by such Participant during the two-year period ending on the date of distribution; and
  - (ii) there has been no prior distribution made to such Participant pursuant to this Section 7.2.
- (b) <u>Automatic Distribution</u>. With respect to a Participant or an Alternate Payee whose Plan Benefit, including any amounts attributable to an in-Plan Rollover Contribution to a Roth Account pursuant to Section 8.4(d), but not including any amounts in the Participant or Alternate Payee's Rollover Accounts, does not exceed the amount set forth in Section 7.2(a), if and to the extent that the Committee has resolved to provide for automatic distributions pursuant

to Section 7.2(b) of Schedule A, the Committee shall direct the automatic distribution of the Participant's Account and Rollover Account or the Alternate Payee's Alternate Payee Account as soon as practicable, to the extent provided in Section 7.2(b) of Schedule A: (i) following the Participant's Severance from Employment and (ii) upon an Account Participant's Plan Benefit falling below the value set forth in Section 7.2(b) of Schedule A, to the extent that the requirements of Section 7.2(a) are met; *provided*, *however*, that in the event any such distribution is greater than \$1,000, if the participant does not elect to have such distribution paid directly to an eligible retirement plan specified by the participant in a direct rollover or to receive the distribution directly in accordance with Section 8.1(b), then the Committee will pay the distribution in a direct rollover to an individual retirement plan designated by the Committee; and *provided further*, that such distribution shall made in accordance with the requirements of Section 401(a)(31) of the Code.

- 7.3 <u>Loans</u>. To the extent the Committee has resolved to adopt a loan program pursuant to Section 7.3 of Schedule A, this Section 7.3 shall apply.
- (a) <u>Eligibility</u>. Participants who are active Employees, and, if the Committee shall determine, Participants who are on an approved leave of absence from their Employer, shall be eligible to request a Plan loan. Each Participant shall have only one outstanding Plan loan at any time. Upon the request of a loan-eligible Participant, the Administrative Service Agency may, on such terms and conditions prescribed herein, direct the Trustee to make a Plan loan to such loan-eligible Participant.
- (b) <u>Loan Amount</u>. The principal amount of any Plan loan shall be for an amount equal to at least \$1,000, or such other amount as the Committee shall determine, and shall not exceed the lesser of:
  - (i) 50% of the value of the sum of the Participant's Accounts (including his or her Before-Tax Deferral Account and Roth Account (to the extent applicable)); and
  - (ii) \$50,000 reduced by the highest value in the last twelve months of any loans by the Participant from the Plan and other Eligible Retirement Plans sponsored by the Employer or in which the Employer participates.
- (c) Repayment Period. All Plan loans, other than those for the purpose of acquiring the dwelling unit which is, or within a reasonable time shall be, the principal residence of the Participant, shall be repaid over a non-renewable repayment period of five years. A Plan loan made for acquiring a principal residence shall be repaid over a non-renewable repayment period of up to 15 years, or such shorter term as the Committee shall determine. Any Plan loan shall be repaid in substantially equal installments of principal and accrued interest that shall be paid at least monthly or quarterly, as specified by the Committee, subject to the methods and procedures as shall be determined by the Administrative Service Agency.
- (d) <u>Rate of Interest</u>. Each Plan loan granted shall bear a rate of interest equal to one percentage point above the prime interest rate as published in the Wall Street Journal on the last

Business Day of the month preceding the application for the loan, or such other reasonable rate of interest as the Committee shall determine.

- (e) <u>Source of Loans; Security</u>. A Plan loan shall be made only from the Before-Tax Deferral Account or, if applicable, Rollover Accounts relating to Rollover Contributions of before-tax deferrals. All Plan loans shall be made from the Trust Fund and notes evidencing such obligations shall be considered assets of the Trust Fund and shall be treated as a separate loan investment fund for purposes of determining the value as of any Valuation Date of a Participant's Accounts. All Plan loans shall be secured, as of the date of the Plan loan, by the sum of (i) the Participant's Before-Tax Deferral Account and Roth Account (to the extent applicable) and (ii) the Participant's Rollover Accounts, if applicable, *provided*, *however*, that no more than 50% of the aggregate value of such Participant's Accounts shall be used as security for the Plan loan.
- (f) <u>Default</u>. If a Participant fails to make any scheduled repayment of his or her Plan loan within the Loan Grace Period, such Participant shall be considered in default and the Administrative Service Agency shall declare a deemed distribution to have occurred with respect to such Plan loan, effective as of the date of the default and shall reduce the value of the Participant's Plan Benefit by the amount of the deemed distribution. Notwithstanding anything in Section 7.3 to the contrary, a Participant who has defaulted on a loan made under the Plan shall not be eligible to obtain another loan hereunder until the defaulted loan and accrued interest has been repaid, and the new loan shall be subject to any other limitations required under Section 1.72(p) of the Treasury Regulations.
- (g) <u>Outstanding Loans</u>. An outstanding loan shall include (i) any loan that is being repaid in compliance with Section 7.3 until repaid in full and (ii) any loan that is considered in default until subsequently repaid in full.
- (h) <u>Administration and Fees</u>. The Committee may establish or change from time to time the standards or requirements for making any Plan loan, including assessing an administrative fee against the Participant or the Participant's Account for such Plan loan.
- 7.4 <u>Death Prior to Distribution of Proceeds</u>. If a Participant dies prior to the payment of any withdrawal for an Unforeseeable Emergency, distribution of a small inactive account or disbursement of the proceeds of any Plan loan, the Participant's withdrawal, distribution or loan request shall be void as of the date of death and no withdrawal, distribution or disbursement shall be made by operation of Section 7 to the Participant's Beneficiary or estate.

# SECTION 8 DISTRIBUTIONS FROM THE PLAN AND OTHER ELIGIBLE RETIREMENT PLANS

# 8.1 <u>Distributions to Participants.</u>

- (a) <u>Eligibility for Distribution</u>. A Participant will become eligible to receive a distribution of his Plan Benefit upon the occurrence of any of the following events: (i) the Participant's Severance from Employment with the Employer; (ii) the Participant's attainment of age 70½; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that for purposes of this Section 8, a Participant will be deemed to have had a Severance from Employment during any period he or she is performing service in the uniformed services described in Section 3401(h)(2)(A) of the Code; . Except as otherwise provided in Section 7, a Participant may not receive distribution of his or her Plan Benefit at any time prior to the occurrence of one of the foregoing events.
- (b) <u>Distributions to Participants</u>. Upon a Participant's eligibility for a distribution pursuant to Section 8.1(a), the Participant shall be entitled to receive his or her Plan Benefit, which shall be paid in cash by the Trustee from the Trust Fund in accordance with one of the methods described in Section 8.1(c) and as of the commencement date elected by the Participant in accordance with the procedures prescribed Section 8.1(e).
- (c) <u>Distribution Options</u>. Subject to Section 8.6, any payment made under this section shall be made in one of the following methods, as the Participant (or, in the case of the death of a Participant, his or her Beneficiary) may elect any of the following:
  - (i) A total or partial lump sum payment. Any partial lump sum payment shall be an amount of at least the Minimum Lump Sum Amount, and the number of partial lump sum payments in any Plan Year may not exceed the Maximum Annual Number of Partial Distributions.
  - (ii) Periodic monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual installment payments; provided, however, that a Participant (or, in the case of the death of a Participant, his or her Beneficiary) may elect to receive (A) an initial installment payment in a specified amount and (B) the balance of his or her Account in periodic monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual installment payments. Any installment payment made pursuant to Section 8.1(c)(ii) shall be at least the Minimum Installment Amount. If the balance of the Participant's Account and Rollover Account is less than such amount, then the payment will equal the total amount of the Participant's Account and Rollover Account. Installment payments may consist of (A) fixed amounts paid on each payment date as designated by the Participant (or in the case of the death of a Participant, his or her Beneficiary), or (B) formulaic amounts determined by the Administrative Service Agency, based on a fixed period designated by the Participant (or in the case of the death of a Participant, his or her Beneficiary), calculated by dividing the Plan Benefit on the date of the payment by the number of payments remaining during the fixed period.

- (iii) A Participant who elects to receive installment payments or who is currently receiving installment payments pursuant to Section 8.1(c)(ii) may elect, subject to any limitations set forth by the Committee and in accordance with procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency, to receive a portion of his or her Account distributed in a lump sum; *provided, however*, that no lump sum payment shall be less than the Minimum Lump Sum Amount; and *provided further*, that the number of such elections in any Plan Year may not exceed the Maximum Annual Number of Partial Distributions, as set forth in Section 8.1(c) of Schedule A. Such lump sum payments shall not result in a discontinuation of subsequent installment payments; *provided, however*, that such subsequent payments may be redetermined in accordance with methods and procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency.
- (iv) A Participant who is an eligible retired public safety officer, as defined in Section 402(1) of the Code, may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Administrative Service Agency, to have up to \$3,000 per year (or such greater amount as may be permitted under applicable guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service) of amounts from his or her Before-Tax Deferral Account distributable under the Plan used to pay qualified health insurance premiums for an accident or health plan or long-term care insurance contract covering the Participant and his or her spouse and dependents. Such amounts are excludible from the Participant's gross income to the extent the qualified health insurance premiums are paid directly to the provider of the accident or health plan or long-term care insurance contract (determined in accordance with Section 402(1) of the Code) by deduction from a distribution to the Plan.
- (v) For each distribution election under Section 8.1(c), a Participant shall designate the percentage of each distribution that will come from his or her Before-Tax Deferral Account and the percentage that will come from his or her Roth Account (to the extent applicable). For the avoidance of doubt, for purposes of the limitations and restrictions described in this Section 8.1(c), each distribution election made by a Participant and each payment made in accordance thereto shall be deemed to be one election and one payment, even if payment is made both from the Participant's Before-Tax Deferral Account and from his or her Roth Account (to the extent applicable).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant may not elect an installment period extending beyond the longest of (A) his or her life expectancy, (B) if his or her designated Beneficiary is his or her Spouse, the life expectancy of the Participant and his or her Spouse and (C) if his designated Beneficiary is not his or her Spouse, the life expectancy determined using the applicable table contained in the applicable Treasury Regulation.

#### (d) Calculation of Payments.

(i) If a Participant elects a total lump sum payment, pursuant to Section 8.1(c)(i), the Participant's Plan Benefit shall be determined as of the Valuation Date coincident with or last preceding the date on which the Plan Benefit is

withdrawn from the Investment Options and liquidated for distribution. Such liquidated amount (i) shall be held in the Trust Fund in a payment account maintained by the Trustee for this purpose and (ii) shall not be credited with interest or investment gains or losses following the date of liquidation.

- If a Participant elects to receive a partial lump sum payment pursuant to Section 8.1(c)(i) or (iii), installment payments pursuant to Section 8.1(c)(i), or payment of qualified health insurance premiums for an accident or health plan or long-term care insurance contract covering the Participant and his or her spouse and dependents pursuant to paragraph Section 8.1(c)(iv), any remaining balance in such Participant's Accounts shall continue to participate in the investment performance of the Investment Options in which such amounts are invested and to bear its allocable share of administrative and investment expenses until the Valuation Date coincident with or last preceding the date on which such Plan Benefit amounts are withdrawn from the Investment Funds and liquidated for distribution; provided, however, that the amount of the installments need not be redetermined to reflect changes in the value of the Account more frequently than annually. All such redeterminations shall be made by the Administrative Service Agency in accordance with procedures of uniform application. Any amount liquidated for purposes of an installment payment (i) shall be held in the Trust Fund in a payment account maintained by the Trustee for this purpose and (ii) shall not be credited with interest or investment gains or losses following the date of liquidation.
- (e) <u>Distribution Election</u>. In the case of the Participant's Severance from Employment with the Employer, a distribution election made by the Participant shall specify the form of payment as provided in Section 8.1(c) and the date on which payments shall commence; provided, however, that any such payments that would result in an account balance of less than \$500 may not commence earlier than at the end of the Distribution Waiting Period; provided, further that the timing of any distribution must be in compliance with Section 8.6. Subject to Section 8.6, a Participant who is receiving distributions under the Plan may change both the timing and the method of payment elected subject to any limitations set forth by the Committee and in accordance with procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency.
- (f) Rollover Accounts. Notwithstanding any other provision of Section 8.1, a Participant who has one or more Rollover Accounts shall be permitted to withdraw all or any portion of such Rollover Accounts at any time during a Plan Year; *provided* that such withdrawal shall be paid pursuant to a method of payment elected by the Participant in accordance with Section 8.1(c) and the value of such Rollover Accounts shall be determined is accordance with Section 8.1(d).
- 8.2 <u>Distributions to Beneficiaries</u>. If a Participant dies before distribution of his or her Plan Benefit has commenced, a distribution election made by the Beneficiary shall specify the form of payment as provided in Section 8.1(c) and the date on which payments shall commence. If a Participant dies at any time before his or her entire Plan Benefit has been distributed, then the Participant's Beneficiary may make subsequent distribution elections as provided in Section 8.1(c). Notwithstanding the foregoing, any distribution to a Beneficiary shall be made in

accordance with the provisions of Section 401(a)(9) of the Code and subject to Sections 8.6(d) and (e).

8.3 <u>Distributions to Alternate Payees</u>. A distribution to an Alternate Payee may be paid in a single lump sum as soon as practicable following the qualification of the Qualified Domestic Relations Order and the close of all appeals to the Qualified Domestic Relations Order if the Alternate Payee consents to such lump sum distribution. In the event that the Alternate Payee does not consent to receive his or her distribution in a single lump sum as soon as practicable following the qualification of the Qualified Domestic Relations Order, the Alternate Payee may make an election to receive a distribution any time after the Earliest Retirement Date, subject to any requirements of Section 401(a)(9) of the Code and Section 8.1(c), by filing a distribution election specifying the form of payment as provided in Section 8.6 and the date on which payments shall commence.

# 8.4 <u>Eligible Rollover Distributions</u>.

- (a) Participant Rollover Distributions. In connection with a Participant's Severance from Employment, the Distributee may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Administrative Service Agency, to have all or any portion of the Participant's Accounts that qualifies as an Eligible Rollover Distribution paid directly to the trustee of an Eligible Retirement Plan; *provided* that such other plan provides for the acceptance of such amounts by the trustee. The Plan shall provide written information to Distributees regarding Eligible Rollover Distributions to the extent required by Section 402(f) of the Code.
- (b) <u>Beneficiary Rollover Distributions</u>. Upon a Participant's death, a Beneficiary may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Administrative Service Agency, to have all or any portion of the Participant's Accounts that qualifies as an Eligible Rollover Distribution paid directly to the trustee of an individual retirement arrangement (as defined in Section 7701(a)(37) of the Code) that is established for the purpose of receiving the distribution on behalf of such Beneficiary.
- (c) Roth IRA Rollover Distribution. In connection with a Participant's Severance from Employment or upon a Participant's death, as the case may be, a Participant or a Beneficiary may elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Administrative Service Agency, to have all or any portion of the Participant's Accounts that qualifies as an Eligible Rollover Distribution rolled over to a Roth individual retirement arrangement (as defined in Section 7701(a)(37) of the Code, and designated as a Roth arrangement at the time of its establishment). Such amounts will be included in gross income as if the distribution had been made to such Participant or Beneficiary.
- (d) In-Plan Rollover to Roth Account. To the extent the Committee has resolved to implement a Roth Program pursuant to Section 3.1(c) of Schedule A and the Committee has further resolved to allow in-Plan Rollover Contributions to a Roth Account pursuant to Section 8.4(d) of Schedule A, this Section 8.4(d) shall apply. Upon any distribution event pursuant to which a Participant, a Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or a spousal Alternate Payee would be permitted to have all or any portion of the Participant's Plan Benefit that

qualifies as an Eligible Rollover Distribution rolled over into another Eligible Retirement Plan, such Participant, Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee may elect to have the portion of such Eligible Rollover Distribution that is not attributable to Roth Contributions or outstanding loans directly rolled over into a separately maintained Account within his or her Roth Account. Any such amounts will be included in gross income as if the distribution had been made to such Participant, Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee. After a Participant, Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee has made an in-Plan rollover into a Roth Account, such Participant, Beneficiary who is a Participant's Surviving Spouse or spousal Alternate Payee may elect to take distributions from such Account in accordance with any of the distribution options set forth in Section 8.1(c). The provisions in Section 8.4(d) shall be administered in accordance with procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency and shall be interpreted and administered in accordance with and subject to Section 402A(c)(4) of the Code and any rules, regulations or other guidance issued by the Internal Revenue Service in relation thereto.

8.5 <u>Withholding</u>. The Trustee shall withhold or cause to be withheld from any amounts withdrawn or distributed all federal, state, city or other taxes as shall be required pursuant to any law or governmental ruling or regulation, including Treasury Regulations.

# 8.6 Required Minimum Distributions.

- <u>In General</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary (except Section 8.6(b)), all distributions under the Plan shall be in accordance with the minimum distribution and timing requirements of Section 401(a)(9) of the Code (including the incidental death benefit requirements of Section 401(a)(9)(G) of the Code) and the final Treasury regulations under Sections 1.401(a)(9)-2 through 1.401(a)(9)-9, which are incorporated herein by reference. Such provisions shall override any distribution options in the Plan that may be inconsistent with Section 401(a)(9) of the Code. Any distributions made pursuant to this Section 8.6 in order to comply with Section 401(a)(9) of the Code shall be charged against the Account or Accounts of the Account Participant in such manner as designated by the Account Participant in accordance with procedures established by the Administrative Service Agency; provided, however, that if no such designation is made, such distributions shall be charged first against the Before-Tax Deferral Account, second against the Roth Account (to the extent applicable), third against the Rollover Account or Rollover Accounts not relating to Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program, and fourth against the Rollover Account or Rollover Accounts relating to Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth **Contribution Program**
- (b) <u>2009 Waiver</u>. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 8.6, an Account Participant who would have been required to receive required minimum distributions for 2009 but for the enactment of Section 401(a)(9)(H) of the Code ("<u>2009 RMDs</u>"), and who would have satisfied that requirement by receiving distributions that are (i) equal to the 2009 RMDs or (ii) one or more payments in a series of substantially equal distributions (that include the 2009 RMDs) made at least annually and expected to last for the life (or life expectancy) of the Participant, the joint lives (or joint life expectancy) of the Participant and the Participant's Beneficiary, or for a period of at least 10 years, will not receive those distributions for 2009

unless the Participant or Beneficiary chooses to receive such distributions. Participants and Beneficiaries described in the preceding sentence will be given the opportunity to elect to receive the distributions described in the preceding sentence.

- (c) <u>Distributions During Participant's Life</u>. The Plan Benefit of a Participant shall be distributed (or commence to be distributed) to such Participant as soon as practicable after the Required Beginning Date. If the Participant has not made an election pursuant to Section 8.1(c) prior to such Required Beginning Date, then the Plan Benefit shall be distributed in the form of installment payments commencing on the Required Beginning Date.
  - (d) <u>Death of a Participant Before the Required Beginning Date.</u>
    - (i) If a Participant dies before his Required Beginning Date, the remaining portion (if any) of such Participant's Plan Benefit shall be distributed to his or her Beneficiary (or if the Participant has no Beneficiary, his or her Surviving Spouse or estate, as determined under Section 9.2) no later than December 31 of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of the Participant's death (determined without regard to 2009), except as set forth in Sections 8.6(d)(i)(a) or (a) as follows:
      - (a) The Beneficiary may elect to receive a distribution of the Plan Benefit over a period not exceeding the life expectancy of the Beneficiary; *provided* that the distribution commences no later than December 31 of the calendar year immediately following the calendar year in which the Participant dies; or
      - (b) If the sole Beneficiary is the Participant's Surviving Spouse, such Surviving Spouse may elect to receive a distribution of the Account over a period not exceeding the life expectancy of the Surviving Spouse (determined as of the date such payments commence); *provided* that the distribution commences on or before the later of December 31 of the calendar year immediately following the calendar year in which the Participant dies or December 31 of the calendar year in which the Participant would have attained age 70 ½; *provided*, *further*, that if the Surviving Spouse dies after the Participant but before distributions to the Surviving Spouse commence, Section 8.6(d) (with the exception of Section 8.6(d)(i)(a)) shall apply as if the Surviving Spouse were the Participant.
    - (ii) The Beneficiary may elect to receive payment of the Plan Benefit as a lump sum or in annual, monthly or quarterly installment payments.
- (e) <u>Death After Required Beginning Date and After Commencement of Distributions</u>. If a Participant dies on or after the Required Beginning Date, but before his or her entire Plan Benefit is distributed to him or her, the unpaid portion of his or her Plan Account shall be distributed as follows:

- (i) If the Participant has a designated Beneficiary, the longer of the remaining life expectancy of the Participant's Beneficiary and the remaining life expectancy of the Participant determined in accordance with Section 1.409(a)(9)-5 of the Treasury Regulations; or
- (ii) If the Participant does not have a designated Beneficiary, the remaining life expectancy of the Participant determined in accordance with Section 1.409(a)(9)-5 of the Treasury Regulations;

provided, however, that if a Beneficiary so elects, the Participant's remaining Plan Benefit may be paid to the Beneficiary at any time in a lump sum so long as the entire Plan Benefit is paid at least as rapidly as it would be paid under Section 8.6(e)(i).

- (f) <u>Alternate Payee Accounts</u>. In the case of any Alternate Payee Account, payments to the Alternate Payee must be made in accordance with the Plan and Section 401(a)(9) of the Code.
- 8.7 Special Proceeds. If the Plan receives Special Proceeds (as defined below) that are allocable to an Account Participant who has received a final distribution of his or her entire Plan Benefit, then the Plan shall distribute such Special Proceeds to the former Participant, Beneficiary, or Alternate Payee (or in accordance with Section 9.2, if the Participant is deceased and no Beneficiary designation was in effect at the time of the Participant's death, or to the estate of Beneficiary or Alternate Payee, as applicable, if such person is deceased) in a lump sum as soon as practicable after the Plan receives such Special Proceeds unless, at the time of such mandatory distribution, the value of such distribution would exceed \$1,000. For purposes of Section 8.7, "Special Proceeds" means amounts attributable to a settlement of any dispute or controversy related to any of the assets previously attributable to any Account of the former Participant, Beneficiary, or Alternate Payee or any other amounts allocable under the Plan to a former Participant, Beneficiary, or Alternate Payee relating to an adjustment to the amount or value of any such Account.

# SECTION 9 DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARIES

- 9.1 Written Designation of Beneficiaries. Each Participant shall file with the Administrative Service Agency a written designation of one or more persons as the Beneficiary who shall be entitled to receive the Plan Benefit, if any, payable under the Plan upon his or her death. A Participant may from time to time revoke or change his or her Beneficiary designation without the consent of any prior Beneficiary by filing a new written designation with the Administrative Service Agency. The last such designation received by the Administrative Service Agency "in good order" shall be controlling; provided, however, that no designation or change or revocation thereof shall be effective unless received by the Administrative Service Agency in good order prior to the Participant's death, and in no event shall it be effective as of a date prior to such receipt. For purposes of Section 9, a Beneficiary designation shall be deemed to be received in good order only if the Administrative Service Agency can reasonably identify the Beneficiary or Beneficiaries named in the designation.
- No Beneficiaries Designated. (a) If no such Beneficiary designation is in effect at the time of a Participant's death, or if no designated Beneficiary survives the Participant, or if no designated Beneficiary can be located with reasonable diligence by the Administrative Service Agency, the payment of the Plan Benefit, if any, payable under the Plan upon the Participant's death shall be made by the Trustee from the Trust Fund to the Participant's Surviving Spouse, if any, or if the Participant has no Surviving Spouse, or the Surviving Spouse cannot be located with reasonable diligence by the Administrative Service Agency, then to the deceased Participant's estate. If the Administrative Service Agency is in doubt as to the right or entitlement of any person to receive such amount, the Administrative Service Agency shall inform the Committee and the Trustee, and the Trustee may retain such amount, without liability for any interest thereon, until the rights thereto are determined, or the Trustee may pay such amount into any court of appropriate jurisdiction or to any other person pursuant to applicable law and such payment shall be a complete discharge of the liability of the Trustee, Plan, Committee, Employer, Administrative Service Agency and Financial Organizations.
- (b) If the Beneficiary so designated by the Participant dies after the death of the Participant but prior to receiving a complete distribution of the amount that would have been paid to such Beneficiary had such Beneficiary's death not then occurred, then, for purposes of the Plan, the distribution that would otherwise have been received by such Beneficiary shall be paid to the Beneficiary's estate.
- 9.3 <u>Surviving Spouse</u>. Notwithstanding Section 9.2, a Beneficiary who is a Surviving Spouse of the Participant may designate a subsequent Beneficiary, subject to the same filing requirements of Section 9.1, to the extent permitted under Section 401(a)(9) of the Code. To the extent such Surviving Spouse is not permitted or does not elect to designate a subsequent Beneficiary pursuant to the preceding sentence, and the Surviving Spouse dies prior to receiving a complete distribution of the amount that would have been paid to such Surviving Spouse had such Surviving Spouse's death not then occurred, then, for purposes of the Plan, the distribution that would otherwise have been received by such Surviving Spouse shall be paid to the Surviving Spouse's estate.

# SECTION 10 OUALIFIED DOMESTIC RELATIONS ORDERS

- 10.1 Qualified Domestic Relations Order. Payments with respect to a Participant's Plan Benefit may be made by the Trustee from the Trust Fund to one or more Alternate Payees pursuant to the terms of a Qualified Domestic Relations Order. Upon segregation of the assets payable to an Alternate Payee in an Alternate Payee Account or the payment of such benefits to the Alternate Payee, any such amounts paid or segregated shall no longer constitute part of the Participant's Plan Benefit. No liability whatsoever shall be incurred by the Committee, the Trustee, the Employer, the Administrative Service Agency, the Review Committee or any Financial Organization solely by reason of any act or omission undertaken in accordance with this section to comply with the terms of a Qualified Domestic Relations Order.
- 10.2 <u>Suspension of Distributions During Claim Period</u>. Subject to the discretion of the Administrative Service Agency or the Committee, no distribution of any Plan Benefit shall be permitted in any period during which a purported Qualified Domestic Relations Order claim, against all or part of such Plan Benefit, is being reviewed in accordance with the provisions of Section 11.8. If the Administrative Service Agency reasonably believes that a purported Qualified Domestic Relations Order against all or part of any Plan Benefit is likely to be asserted, the Committee may refuse to permit any distribution of all or part of such Plan Benefit pending determination of such claim.

# SECTION 11 ADMINISTRATION

- 11.1 <u>Plan Administration</u>. Except as otherwise provided herein, the operation and administration of the Plan shall be the responsibility of the Committee and the Committee shall have all of the broad, general authority necessary or advisable to operate and administer the Plan. The Committee shall have the power and the duty to take all action and to make all decisions necessary or proper to carry out its responsibilities under the Plan. All determinations of the Committee as to any question involving its responsibilities under the Plan, including, interpretation of the Plan or as to any discretionary actions to be taken under the Plan, shall be solely in the Committee's discretion and shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties.
- 11.2 <u>Committee Powers and Duties</u>. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Committee shall have the following powers and duties:
- (a) to require any person to furnish such information as it may request for the purpose of the proper administration of the Plan as a condition to receiving any benefit under the Plan;
- (b) to make and enforce such rules and regulations and prescribe the use of such forms as it shall deem necessary for the efficient administration of the Plan;
- (c) to interpret the Plan and to resolve ambiguities, inconsistencies and omissions in the terms of the Plan or any document related to the Plan;
- (d) to decide all questions concerning the Plan and the eligibility of any Employee or other individual to participate in the Plan;
- (e) to determine the amount of benefits which shall be payable to any person in accordance with the provisions of the Plan;
- (f) to enlarge or diminish any applicable time period set forth in the Plan, subject to applicable law; and
- (g) to determine the methods and procedures for the implementation and use of any automated telephone, computer, internet, intranet or other electronic or automated system adopted by the Committee for purposes of Plan administration, including, for receiving and processing enrollments and instructions with respect to the investment of assets allocated to an Account Participant's Accounts and for such other purposes as may be designated from time to time.
- 11.3 <u>Limitation of Liability</u>. Except as may be prohibited by applicable law, neither the Committee nor any member thereof shall be liable for (a) anything done or omitted to be done by it or by them unless the act or omission claimed to be the basis for liability amounted to a failure to act in good faith or was due to gross negligence or willful misconduct; (b) the payment of any amount under the Plan; or (c) any judgment or reasonable mistake of fact made by it or on its behalf by a member of the Committee. No member of the Committee shall be personally liable under any contract, agreement, bond or other instrument made or executed by him or her or on his or her behalf in connection with the Plan or Trust Fund.

- 11.4 Trustee. The Trustee shall have responsibility for the custody and safekeeping of the assets of the Plan and the Trust Fund and the valuation of such assets in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement and, in conjunction with the Administrative Service Agency, shall be responsible for implementing the aggregated investment decisions of Participants and beneficiaries by allocating the Plan assets to the various Investment Options. The Committee shall periodically review the performance and methods of the Trustee and the Committee may, subject to the terms of the Trust Agreement, appoint and remove or change the Trustee at any time for any reason or for no stated reason. If the Trust Agreement so provides, the Trustee may also serve as the Administrative Service Agency and perform the record keeping services normally performed by a third party Administrative Service Agency or may provide the services normally provided by a Financial Organization, provided that the Trustee otherwise qualifies as an Administrative Service Agency or a Financial Organization, as the case may be.
- 11.5 <u>Financial Organizations</u>. The Committee shall have the power to appoint or remove one or more Financial Organizations and to delegate to such Financial Organization(s) authority and discretion to manage (including the power to acquire and dispose of) the assets of the Plan and Trust Fund in accordance with the Regulations and the Plan. The Committee shall periodically review the performance and methods of such Financial Organization(s). The Committee has the right to (i) replace any Financial Organization or Investment Option with a successor Financial Organization or Investment Option or (ii) to select any additional Financial Organization or Investment Option.
- 11.6 <u>Delegation</u>. The Committee may delegate its general authority as it deems appropriate in accordance with the terms of the Plan and all applicable Code sections; *provided*, *however*, that such delegation shall be subject to revocation at any time at the discretion of the Committee. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the Committee's general authority shall include the right to review, revise, modify, revoke, or vacate any decision made or action taken by any party under the Plan to whom authority of the Committee has been delegated or to whom authority with respect to the administration of the Plan or the custody and investment of the assets of the Trust Fund has been delegated or assigned under the terms of the Plan, by the Committee or otherwise. The rights of the Committee under Section 11.6 include, the right to review, revise, modify, revoke, or vacate any decision of the Administrative Service Agency or the Review.

# 11.7 <u>Plan Expenses</u>.

(a) Assessment Against the Trust Fund. Subject to 11.7(b), the expenses of administering the Plan, including (i) the fees and expenses of the Financial Organizations and Administrative Service Agency for the performance of their duties under the Plan, including any fees and expenses associated with a change, termination or addition of an Investment Option, (ii) the fees, if any, of any member of the Committee and any Trustee and the expenses incurred by the Committee or any of its members or any Trustee in the performance of their duties under the Plan (including reasonable compensation for any legal counsel, certified public accountants, consultants, and agents, employees of the Committee and cost of services rendered in respect of the Plan and the Trust Agreement (as provided therein)), and (iii) all other proper charges and disbursements of the Financial Organizations, Administrative Service Agency, the Committee or its members (including settlements of claims or legal actions approved by counsel to the Plan) or

any Trustee shall be allocated to and paid out of the assets of the Trust Fund in accordance with such allocation and payment procedures as the Committee shall establish from time to time. The Committee is authorized to levy a fee against the Accounts of Account Participants for the purpose of paying some or all of such expenses, except where the Employer elects to pay such expenses directly; *provided*, *however*, that any such fees shall be levied on a pro-rata basis from the Account Participant's various Accounts at any given time, including Before-Tax Deferral Accounts, Roth Accounts (to the extent applicable), Rollover Accounts not relating to Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program, and Rollover Accounts relating to Rollover Contributions of amounts from a Qualified Roth Contribution Program.

(b) <u>Investment Expenses</u>. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, brokerage fees, transfer taxes and any other expenses incident to the purchase or sale of securities for any Investment Option shall be deemed to be part of the cost of such securities, or deducted in computing the proceeds therefrom, as the case may be. The Administrative Service Agency shall appropriately deduct any taxes assessed in respect of any assets held, income received, or transactions effected under any Investment Option proportionately against any Accounts that are invested in such Investment Option.

# 11.8 Review of Claims.

- (a) <u>Initial Claim of Rights or Benefits and Review</u>. Any claim to rights or benefits under the Plan, including, any purported Qualified Domestic Relations Order, or request for an Unforeseeable Emergency Withdrawal must be filed in writing with the Committee, or with such other entity as the Committee may designate. Within sixty days after receipt of such claim, the Committee, or such other entity designated by the Committee, shall notify the claimant and, if such claimant is not the Account Participant, any Account Participant against whose Plan Benefit the claim is made, that the claim has been granted or denied, in whole or in part. Notice of denial of any claim in whole or in part by the Committee, or by such other entity designated by the Committee, shall include the specific reasons for denial and notice of the rights granted by Section 11.8.
- (b) Review of Decision. Any claimant or Account Participant who has received notice of denial or grant, in whole or in part, of a claim made in accordance with the foregoing Section 11.8(a) may file a written request within thirty days of receipt of such denial for review of the decision by the Review Committee. Within ninety days after receipt of such request for review, the Review Committee shall notify the claimant and, as applicable, the Account Participant, that the claim has been granted or denied, in whole or in part; provided, however, that the Review Committee may in its discretion extend such period by up to an additional 120 days upon notice to the claimant and, as applicable, the Account Participant, prior to expiration of the original ninety days that such additional period is needed for proper review of the claim. Notice of denial of any claim in whole or in part by the Review Committee shall include the specific reasons for denial and shall be final, binding and conclusive on all interested persons for all purposes.
- 11.9 <u>Advisers</u>. The Committee shall arrange for the engagement of legal counsel and certified public accountants, who may be counsel or accountants for the Employer, and other consultants, including an investment adviser, and make use of agents and clerical or other personnel, for

purposes of this Plan. The Committee may rely upon the written opinions of counsel, accountants and consultants, and upon any information supplied by the Trustee, a Financial Organization or Administrative Service Agency appointed in accordance with the Regulations.

- 11.10 <u>Limitation on Committee Power</u>. No member of the Committee shall be entitled to act on or decide any matters relating solely to such member or any of his or her rights or benefits under the Plan.
- 11.11 <u>Committee Action</u>. All actions of the Committee shall be taken at a public meeting in accordance with Article 7 of the Public Officers Law. The Committee shall establish its own procedures and the time and place for its meetings and provide for the keeping of minutes of all meetings.
- 11.12 <u>General Requirements</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the Plan shall at all times be operated in accordance with the requirements of applicable law, including, the Regulations.

# SECTION 12 AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION

- 12.1 <u>Power to Amend and Terminate</u>. Subject to any requirements of State or federal law, the Employer reserves the right at any time and with or without prior notice to any person to amend, suspend or terminate the Plan, to eliminate future deferrals and contributions for existing Participants, or to limit participation to existing Participants, in whole or in part and for any reason and without the consent of any Employee, Account Participant, Beneficiary or other person. No amendment, suspension or termination of any provisions of the Plan or any deferrals or contributions thereunder, the Trust Agreement or any Investment Option may be made retroactively, unless such retroactivity is allowed under State law, the Code and other applicable law.
- 12.2 <u>Termination of Plan</u>. Upon any action by the Employer to initiate a Plan termination, the Employer shall permit no further deferrals or contributions of Compensation under the Plan, and the Plan termination shall become effective upon the distribution of all Plan Benefits. After taking an action to initiate a Plan termination, the Employer may distribute all Plan Benefits to Account Participants or the Employer may provide that Plan Benefits and other interests in the Trust Fund shall continue to be payable as provided in the Plan. Any distributions, transfers or other dispositions of the Plan Benefits as provided in the Plan shall constitute a complete discharge of all liabilities under the Plan. The Committee and the Trustee(s) shall remain in existence and the Trust Agreement and all of the provisions of the Plan that the Employer determines are necessary or advisable for the administration and distribution, transfer or other disposition of interests in the Trust Fund shall remain in force.

# SECTION 13 GENERAL LIMITATIONS AND PROVISIONS

- 13.1 <u>Plan Binding on Account Participants</u>. The Plan, as duly amended from time to time, shall be binding on each Account Participant and his or her Surviving Spouse, heirs, administrators, trustees, successors, assigns, and Beneficiaries and all other interested persons.
- 13.2 <u>No Right to Employment</u>. Nothing contained herein shall give any individual the right to be retained in the employment of the Employer or affect the right of the Employer to terminate any individual's employment. The adoption and maintenance of the Plan shall not constitute a contract between the Employer and any individual or consideration for, or an inducement to or condition of, the employment of any individual.
- 13.3 <u>Incapacitation or Incompetence</u>. If the Administrative Service Agency shall find that any person to whom any amount is payable under the Plan is unable to care for his or her affairs, is a minor, or has died, then any payment due to such person or his or her estate (unless a prior claim therefor has been made by a Beneficiary, Surviving Spouse or duly appointed legal representative or the time period during which a Beneficiary or Surviving Spouse could make a claim under the Plan has not elapsed) may, if the Administrative Service Agency so elects, be paid to his or her spouse, a child, a relative, or any other person maintaining or having custody of such person otherwise entitled to payment or deemed by the Trustee to be a proper recipient on behalf of such person. Any such payment shall be a complete discharge of all liability under the Plan therefor.
- 13.4 <u>No Alienation of Plan Benefits</u>. Except insofar as may otherwise be required by a Qualified Domestic Relations Order or applicable law, no amount payable at any time under the Plan shall be subject in any manner to alienation by anticipation, sale, transfer, assignment, bankruptcy, pledge, attachment, garnishment, charge or encumbrance of any kind, and any attempt to so alienate such amount, whether presently or thereafter payable, shall be void.
- 13.5 <u>Notices to the Committee</u>. All elections, designations, requests, notices, instructions, and other communications from the Employer, an Employee, an Account Participant, or any other person to the Committee, Administrative Service Agency or the Employer required or permitted under the Plan shall be in such form as is prescribed by the Committee, shall be mailed by first class mail or delivered electronically in such a form and to such location as shall be prescribed by the Committee from time to time, and shall be deemed to have been given and delivered only upon actual receipt thereof at such location. Copies of all elections, designations, requests, notices, instructions and other communications from an Employee, a Participant, a Beneficiary, a Surviving Spouse or any other person to the Employer shall be promptly filed with the Administrative Service Agency in such a manner specified by the Administrative Service Agency.
- 13.6 <u>Notices to Participants</u>. All notices, statements, reports and other communications from an Employer, the Trustee or the Committee to any Account Participant, shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered to, or when mailed by electronic delivery or other form of delivery approved by the Committee or by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed to such Employee, Account Participant, Beneficiary, Surviving Spouse or other person at his or her

address last appearing on the records of the Administrative Service Agency, the Trustee or the Employer.

13.7 <u>Trust Sole Source of Plan Benefits</u>. The Trust Fund shall be the sole source of benefits under the Plan and, except as otherwise required by applicable law, neither the Committee, the Employer nor any officer or employee of an Employer assume any liability or responsibility for payment of such benefits, and each Account Participant, his or her spouse or Beneficiary, or other person who shall claim the right to any payment under the Plan shall be entitled to look only to the Trust Fund for such payment and shall not have any right, claim or demand therefor against the Committee or any member thereof, the Employer, or any officer or employee of an Employer. Nothing in Section 13.7 shall relieve an Employer of its obligation to defer or contribute Amounts Deferred or Contributed to the Trust Fund within two Business Days after the applicable payroll date, in the manner contemplated by Section 4.1.

# 13.8 Account Assets and Account Vesting.

- (a) Account Assets Held in Trust Fund. The entire value of each Account for each Account Participant shall be held in the Trust Fund pursuant to the Trust Agreement for the exclusive benefit of the applicable Account Participant and for paying reasonable expenses of the Plan and of the Trust Fund pursuant to Section 11.7 and no part of the Trust Fund shall revert to any Employer; *provided*, *however*, that the setting-aside of any amounts to be held in the Trust Fund is expressly conditioned upon the following: If an amount is set aside to be held in the Trust Fund by an Employer in a manner which is inconsistent with any of the requirements of Section 457(b) of the Code, such amount shall be returned to such Employer prior to the first day of the first Plan Year commencing more than 180 days after the date of notification of such inconsistency by the Secretary of the Treasury. Any amounts so returned to the Employer, and the earnings thereon, shall be remitted to the Participants on whose behalf such amounts were set aside.
- (b) <u>Vesting</u>. Each Account Participant shall be 100 percent vested at all times in his or her Plan Benefit.
- 13.9 <u>Several Liability</u>. The duties and responsibilities allocated to each person under the Plan and the Trust Agreement shall be the several and not joint responsibility of each, and no such person shall be liable for the act or omission of any other person.
- 13.10 <u>Interpretation</u>. (i) The term "including" means by way of example and not by way of limitation, and (ii) the headings preceding the sections hereof have been inserted solely as a matter of convenience and in no way define or limit the scope or intent of any provisions hereof.
- 13.11 <u>Construction</u>. The Plan and all rights there under shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the Code and the laws of the State.

### SCHEDULE A

Effective date of last completion or amendment of this Schedule A: 12/12/2011

### **Instructions**

This Schedule A and all later amendments to this Schedule A are part of the Plan document and should remain attached to the Plan document.

Schedule A is used by the Committee (1) TO ACTIVATE or TERMINATE optional Plan provisions described below, (2) TO MODIFY the default provisions of the Plan described below or (3) TO INDICATE that the default provisions described below will continue to apply under the Plan.

Each section of this Schedule A must be completed by the Committee in connection with the adoption of this amendment and restatement of the Plan. All selections made shall remain effective until this Schedule A is later amended by the Committee.

All section references refer to the corresponding sections of the Plan and all defined terms have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

# **Committee Elections – Optional Plan Provisions**

### 3.1(c) ROTH PROGRAM

Section 3.1(c) of the Plan permits Roth Contributions only if the Committee checks YES below. The Committee must also indicate below the effective date of this election. The Committee should check NO below to indicate that Roth Contributions will not be permitted under the Plan or, at a later time, to change prospectively (as of a specified effective date) a prior election under this section.

The Plan shall maintain a Roth Program under which Participants may make Roth Contributions to the Plan, which Roth Contributions will be made and separately accounted for in compliance with the relevant provisions of the Plan and the Code.

| X | $\mathbf{Y}$ | ES |
|---|--------------|----|
| Λ | Y            | CD |

□ NO

Effective date: 12/12/2011

### 8.4(d) IN-PLAN ROLLOVER TO A ROTH ACCOUNT

Section 8.4(d) of the Plan permits Roth Contributions only if the Committee has checked YES above (permitting a Roth Program) and checked YES below allowing amounts that otherwise qualify as Eligible Rollover Distributions not attributable to Roth Contributions to be directly contributed to a Roth Account under the Plan. The Committee must also indicate below the effective date of this election. The Committee should check NO below to indicate that Eligible Rollover Distributions may not be directly rolled over to a Roth Account under the Plan or, at a later time, to change prospectively (as of a specified effective date) a prior election under this section.

To the extent the Committee has resolved to implement and maintain a Roth Program pursuant to Section 3.1(c) of Schedule A, a Participant may elect to have the portion of his or her Eligible Rollover Distribution that is not attributable to Roth Contributions directly rolled over into a Roth Account in the Plan.

| X      | YES (do not check YES unless Roth Program is in effect) |
|--------|---|
|        | NO  |
| Effect | ive date: 12/12/2011                                    |

# 3.1(e) SUSPENSION OF DEFERRALS AND CONTRIBUTIONS FOLLOWING AN UNFORESEEABLE EMERGENCY WITHDRAWAL

Section 3.1(e) of the Plan allows the Employer automatically to suspend deferrals and contributions for six months following the date a Participant receives an Unforeseeable Emergency withdrawal only if the Committee checks YES below. The Committee must also indicate below the effective date of this election. The Committee should check NO below to indicate that a suspension of deferrals and contributions will <u>not</u> be required or, at a later time, to change prospectively (as of a specified effective date) a prior election under this section.

| A Par  | ticipant | 's deferrals and contributions will be suspended for a period of six months |
|--------|----------|---|
| follow | ing a d  | istribution due to an Unforeseeable Emergency withdrawal.                   |
|        | YES      |   |

Effective date: 12/12/2011

NO

X

# 7.2(b) AUTOMATIC DISTRIBUTION OF SMALL ACCOUNTS FOLLOWING A SEVERANCE FROM EMPLOYMENT

Section 7.2(b) of the Plan allows the Employer to automatically distribute certain small account balances following a Severance from Employment only if the Committee has checked YES below. The Committee must also indicate below the effective date of this election. The Committee should check NO to indicate that no automatic distribution will occur following a Severance from Employment or, at a later time, prospectively to change(as of a specified effective date) a prior election under this section.

With respect to a Participant or an Alternate Payee whose Account or Alternate Payee Account does not exceed the amount set forth in Section 7.2(a) of the Plan, the Committee shall direct the automatic distribution of the Participant's Account and Rollover Account or the Alternate Payee's Alternate Payee Account as soon as practicable following the Participant's Severance from Employment.

□ YES

X NO

Effective date: 12/12/2011

# 7.2(b) AUTOMATIC DISTRIBUTION OF INACTIVE SMALL ACCOUNTS

Section 7.2(b) of the Plan allows the Employer to automatically distribute certain small account balances in inactive accounts only if the Committee has checked YES below and indicated the small account amount below. The Committee must also indicate below the effective date of this election. The Committee should check NO to indicate that no automatic distribution of inactive small accounts will occur or, at a later time, prospectively to change (as of a specified effective date) a prior election under this section.

## 7.2(b) Automatic Distributions after a Severance from Employment.

With respect to a Participant or an Alternate Payee whose Account or Alternate Payee Account does not exceed the amount set forth in Section 7.2(a) of the Plan, upon an Account Participant's Plan Benefit falling below \$1,000, [Insert any whole dollar amount up to the dollar limit under Section 411(a)(11)(A) of the Code] to the extent that the requirements of Section 7.2(a) of the Plan are met, the Committee shall direct the automatic distribution of the Participant's Account and Rollover Account or the Alternate Payee's Alternate Payee Account in accordance with 7.2(b) of the Plan.

| X | YES (do not check | YES unless a | permissible amour | nt is specified above) |  |
|---|-------------------|--------------|-------------------|------------------------|--|
|---|-------------------|--------------|-------------------|------------------------|--|

□ NO

Effective date: 12/12/2011

### 7.3 PLAN LOANS FOR ACTIVE EMPLOYEES

Section 7.3 of the Plan allows active Employees to request a Plan loan only if the Committee has checked YES below. The Committee must also indicate below the effective date of this election. The Committee should check NO to indicate that no Plan loans will be permitted or, at a later time, prospectively (as of a specified effective date) to change a prior election under this section.

| Participants who are activ | e Employees shall | l be eligible to | request a Plan | loan and may | be |
|----------------------------|-------------------|------------------|----------------|--------------|----|
| granted a loan pursuant to | the requirements  | of Section 7.3   | of the Plan.   |              |    |

□ YES

X NO

Effective date: 12/12/2011

# 7.3(a) PLAN LOANS FOR PARTICIPANTS ON AN APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Section 7.3(a) of the Plan allows Participants who are on an approved leave of absence to be eligible to request a Plan loan only if the Committee has checked YES above (permitting Plan loans for active Employees) and checked YES below extending the loan provisions to Participants on an approved leave of absence. The Committee must also indicate below the effective date of this election. The Committee should check NO to indicate that no Plan loans will be permitted for Participants on an approved leave of absence or, at a later time, prospectively to change (as of a specified effective date) a prior election under this section.

Participants who are on an approved leave of absence from their Employer shall be eligible to request a Plan loan and may be granted a loan pursuant to the requirements of Section 7.3 of the Plan.

| $\square$ Y | YES (do not | check YES | unless Plan | Loans are | authorized | for active | Employees |
|-------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|-----------|------------|------------|-----------|
|-------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|-----------|------------|------------|-----------|

X NO

Effective date: 12/12/2011

# <u>Committee Elections – Modification of Default Plan Provisions</u>

# 7.3(f) DURATION OF LOAN GRACE PERIOD N.A. (no loan provision elected)

Section 7.3 of the Plan allows the Committee to permit Plan loans (see elections above). If the Committee permits Plan loans, the Plan document states that, unless the Committee makes an election below, any such loan will be in default if a Participant fails to make a required loan repayment within 90 days following the due date for such repayment. The Plan document refers to this period as the "Loan Grace Period."

Section 7.3(f) of the Plan allows the Committee to specify a shorter Loan Grace Period by indicating a period of fewer than 90 days below and by indicating that such election will apply to Plan loans made after the effective date specified below. The Committee may, at a later time, indicate (as of a specified effective date) a different Loan Grace Period by making a new election under this section.

The Loan Grace Period for purposes of Section 7.3(f) shall be \_\_\_N/A\_\_\_ days [a number of days greater than 0 but less than 90] following the due date of a Participant's scheduled loan repayment.

Effective date: 12/12/2011

## 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) MINIMUM LUMP SUM AMOUNT

Sections 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) of the Plan allow a Participant who is otherwise eligible for a distribution under the Plan to elect to receive that distribution in a total or partial lump sum. The Plan document states that, unless the Committee makes an election below, the amount of a partial lump sum distribution cannot be less than \$100. The Plan document refers to this amount as the "Minimum Lump Sum Amount."

Sections 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) of the Plan allow the Committee to specify a different Minimum Lump Sum Amount by indicating a dollar amount below and by indicating that such Minimum Lump Sum Amount will apply to distributions made after the effective date specified below. The Committee may also indicate there is no Minimum Lump Sum Amount by inserting the "none" or "0" below. The Committee may, at a later time, indicate (as of a specified effective date) on a prospective basis a different Minimum Lump Sum Amount by making a new election under this section.

The Minimum Lump Sum Amount shall be \$100.

Effective date: 12/12/2011

8.1(c)(ii) MINIMUM INSTALLMENT AMOUNT

Section 8.1(c)(ii) of the Plan allows a Participant who is otherwise eligible for a distribution under the Plan to elect to receive that distribution in periodic monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual installments. The Plan document states that, unless the Committee makes an election below, the amount of an installment distribution cannot be less than \$100. The Plan document refers to this amount as the "Minimum Installment Amount."

Section 8.1(c)(ii) of the Plan allows the Committee to specify a different Minimum Installment Amount by indicating a dollar amount below and by indicating that such Minimum Installment Amount will apply to distributions made after the effective date specified below. The Committee may also indicate there is no Minimum Installment Amount by inserting the "none" or "0" below. The Committee may, at a later time, indicate (as of a specified effective date) on a prospective basis a different Minimum Installment Amount by making a new election under this section.

The Minimum Installment Amount shall be \$100.

Effective date: 12/12/2011

# 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) MAXIMUM ANNUAL NUMBER OF PARTIAL DISTRIBUTIONS PER PLAN YEAR

Sections 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) of the Plan allow a Participant who is otherwise eligible for a distribution under the Plan to elect to receive that distribution in a total or partial lump sum. The Plan document states that, unless the Committee makes an election below, the maximum number of partial lump sum distributions in a Plan Year may not exceed 12. The Plan document refers to this amount as the "Maximum Annual Number of Partial Distributions."

Sections 8.1(c)(i) and (iii) of the Plan allow the Committee to specify a different Maximum Number of Partial Distributions per Plan Year by indicating a different limit below and by indicating that such limit will apply to distributions made after the effective date specified below. The Committee may, at a later time, indicate (as of a specified effective date) on a prospective basis a different Maximum Number of Partial Distributions for a Plan Year by making a new election under this section.

The Maximum Annual Number of Partial Distributions for each Plan Year shall be 12.

Effective date: 12/12/2011

# 8.1(e) DISTRIBUTION WAITING PERIOD

Section 8.1(c) of the Plan allows a Participant who is otherwise eligible for a distribution under the Plan to elect to receive that distribution in a total or partial lump sum or in installments. Section 8.1(e) of the Plan document also states that, unless the Committee makes an election below, a distribution will be delayed for 45 days if the distribution would result in the Participant having an account balance of less than \$500. The Plan document refers to this period as the "Distribution Waiting Period."

Section 8.1(e) of the Plan allows the Committee to specify a different Distribution Waiting Period by indicating a different limit below and by indicating that such limit will apply to distributions made after the effective date specified below. The Committee may also indicate there is no Distribution Waiting Period by inserting the word "none" below. The Committee may, at a later time, indicate (as of a specified effective date) on a prospective basis a different Distribution Waiting Period for a Plan Year by making a new election under this Schedule A.

The Distribution Waiting Period shall be 0 days.

Effective date: 12/12/2011

# SCHEDULE B CARES Act and SECURE Act Optional Plan Provisions\*

This Schedule B and all later amendments to this Schedule B are part of the Plan document and should remain attached to the Plan document.

Schedule B is used by the Employer (1) TO ACTIVATE or TERMINATE optional Plan provisions described below, (2) TO MODIFY the default provisions of the Plan described below or (3) TO INDICATE that the default provisions described below will continue to apply under the Plan.

Each section of this Schedule B must be completed by the Employer in connection with the adoption of this amendment and restatement of the Plan. All selections made shall remain effective until this Schedule B is later amended by the Employer.

All section references refer to the corresponding sections of the Plan and all defined terms have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

# Employer Elections - Optional CARES Act and SECURE Act Plan Provisions

# 7.3(I) CARES ACT PLAN LOANS FOR QUALIFIED PARTICIPANTS

Section 7.3(i) of the Plan allows the Employer to permit Qualified Participants to request a CARES Act Plan loan. If adopted, the provision applies to CARES Act loans made to Qualified Participants from March 27, 2020 to September 23, 2020. Unless the Employer designates a lower amount below, the maximum loan amount shall be capped as described in Section 7.3(i) of the CARES Act. Check YES to indicate that CARES Act loans will be permitted. Only one option may be elected.

Loan-eligible Participants who are Qualified Participants shall be eligible to request a CARES Act Plan loan and may be granted a loan pursuant to the requirements of Section 7.3(i) of the Plan.

|       | YES           |                           |
|-------|---------------|---------------------------|
| X     | NO            |                           |
| If YE | S, the maximu | m loan amount shall be \$ |

# 7.3(1) CARES ACT LOAN REPAYMENT DELAY

Section 7.3(j) of the Plan allows the Employer to permit repayment of certain Plan loans made to Qualified Participants to be delayed up to one year. If adopted, the provision applies to Qualified Participants with outstanding loans with repayment due between March 27, 2020 and December 31, 2020. Check YES to indicate that changes to loan repayment schedules pursuant to the CARES Act will be permitted. Check NO to indicate that no changes to loan repayment schedules pursuant to the CARES Act will occur. Only one option may be elected.

Qualified Participants with an outstanding loan under the Plan may have the due date of such loan delayed pursuant to the requirements of Section 7.3(j) of the Plan.

□ YES

# 7.5 CORONAVIRUS-RELATED DISTRIBUTIONS

Section 7.5 of the Plan allows the Employer to permit Coronavirus-Related Distributions. The Plan document states that, unless the Committee makes a different election below, the maximum distribution amount shall be \$100,000, as capped by the CARES Act. If adopted, the provision applies to Coronavirus-Related Distributions made between January 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020. Check YES to indicate that Coronavirus-Related Distributions will be permitted. Check NO to indicate that Coronavirus-Related Distributions will not be permitted under the Plan. Only one option may be elected.

The Plan shall permit Coronavirus-Related Distributions, pursuant to Section 7.5 of the Plan, in compliance with the relevant provisions of the Plan and the CARES Act.

□ YES

The maximum distribution amount shall be \$\_\_\_\_

# 7.6 DISTRIBUTION FOR A NEW CHILD

Section 7.6 of the Pian allows the Employer to permit penalty-free distributions for a new child. If adopted, the provision applies to Distributions for a New Child made after December 31, 2019. Check YES to indicate that Distributions for a New Child will be permitted. Check NO to indicate that Distributions for a New Child will not be permitted under the Pian. Only one option may be elected.

| 4, 107770000  | ate described below, pursuant to Section 7.6 of the Plan, in compliance with the   |
|---|--|
| T   | elevant provisions of the Plan and the SECURE Act.   |
| E   |  |
| *   | Ĺ NO   |
| 8.1(a) E.   | LIGIBILITY FOR DISTRIBUTION  |
| age belom<br>distribution<br>December<br>will be ch | . 1(a) of the Plan provides for the minimum age for in-service distributions to nts. The Plan document states that, unless the Employer elects a different minimum, which shall be no lower than age 59%, the minimum age for in-service ons shall be 70%. If adopted, the provision applies to distributions made after r 31, 2019. Check YES to indicate that the minimum age for in-service distributions anged to the age elected below. Check NO to indicate that no changes will be made timum age for in-service distributions. Only one option may be elected. |
|   | YES  |
| Th  | e minimum age for in-service distributions shall be 70 1/2   |
|   | NO   |
| 8.6(h) 202  | 20 RMDS  |
| will receive  | b(h) of the Plan provides for the waiver of required minimum distributions for<br>year 2020 and allows the employer to choose whether a Participant or Beneficiary<br>to 2020 RMDs. If adopted, the provision applies to required minimum distributions<br>tiod between January 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020. Only one option may be  |
| ×   | A Participant or Beneficiary who would have been required to receive a 2020 RMD will receive this distribution unless the Participant or Beneficiary chooses not to receive the distribution; or   |
|   | A Participant or Beneficiary who would have been required to receive a 2020 RMD will not receive this distribution unless the Participant or Beneficiary chooses to receive the distribution.  |
| Section 8.6 rollover dis                            | (h) also provides for the treatment of certain distributions in 2020 as eligible<br>tributions. Check <u>one</u> or none.  |
| X   | 2020 RMDs (as defined in the Plan);  |
| , o   | 2020 RMDs and Extended 2020 RMDs (both as defined in the Plan); or   |
|   |  |

2020 RMDs (as defined in the Plan), but only if paid with an additional amount that is an eligible rollover distribution without regard to section 401(a)(9)(1).



# CHEMUNG COUNTY ROUTE SLIP \* PERSONNEL REQUISITION

| D 1 ('          | .1          |               | C 4         |         | •        |        | 1          |
|-----------------|-------------|---------------|-------------|---------|----------|--------|------------|
| Resolution      | authorizing | apportionment | of mortgage | tax to  | various  | tax    | districts  |
| 1 COSO IGGIO II | addiolizing | appointminent | or more age | iuzi io | vario as | ······ | alb are as |

Resolution #:

Slip Type: OTHER

SEQRA status

State Mandated False

Explain action needed or Position requested (justification):

Distribution of Semi-Annual Mortgage Tax to various municipalities within Chemung County as collected and reported by the Chemung County Clerk for the period 10/1/21 to 3/31/22.

| CREATION:            |           |                      |  |
|----------------------|-----------|----------------------|--|
| Date/Time:           |           | Department:          |  |
| 6/14/2022 8:46:55 AM |           | County Executive     |  |
|                      |           |                      |  |
| APPROVALS:           |           |                      |  |
| Date/Time:           | Approval: | Department:          |  |
| 6/14/2022 8:50 AM    | Approved  | County Executive     |  |
| 6/15/2022 10:55 AM   | Approved  | Budget and Research  |  |
| 6/21/2022 11:22 AM   | Approved  | Legislature Chairman |  |

| ATTACHMENTS:  |  |            |
|---|--|------------|
| Name:   | Description:                           | Type:      |
| Semi Annual Mortgage Tax Oct 2021 to March 2022.pdf | Semi Annual Mortgage Tax 10/21 to 3/22 | Cover Memo |

# CHEMUNG COUNTY - MORTGAGE TAX APPORTIONMENT PERIOD COVERED: OCTOBER 1, 2021 To MARCH 31, 2022

RES#

|  |                     |                           | 1, 2022      |              |                      |
|--|---------------------|---------------------------|--------------|--------------|----------------------|
| TOWN/VILLAGE   | ı                   | VILLAGE                   | TOWN/CITY    | TOTAL        | VENDOR#              |
| TOWN OF ASHLAND<br>VILLAGE OF WELLSBURG                            | 15.8360%            | \$966.51                  | \$5,136.71   | \$6,103.22   | 1992<br>10142        |
| BALDWIN  |                     |                           | \$5,254.88   | \$5,254.88   | 1618                 |
| BIG FLATS  |                     |                           | \$111,999.79 | \$111,999.79 | 961                  |
| CATLIN   |                     |                           | \$22,516.86  | \$22,516.86  | 1635                 |
| CHEMUNG  |                     |                           | \$19,619.21  | \$19,619.21  | 8151                 |
| CITY OF ELMIRA   |                     |                           | \$144,605.96 | \$144,605.96 | 2715                 |
| TOWN OF ELMIRA VILLAGE OF ELMIRA HEIGHTS                           | 5.6653%             | \$4,245.06                | \$70,685.56  | \$74,930.62  | 962<br>10140         |
| ERIN   |                     |                           | \$16,187.60  | \$16,187.60  | 9179                 |
| TOWN OF HORSEHEADS VILLAGE OF ELMIRA HEIGHTS VILLAGE OF HORSEHEADS | 3.7269%<br>16.5332% | \$6,737.41<br>\$29,887.91 | \$144,150.08 | \$180,775.40 | 963<br>10140<br>2155 |
| SOUTHPORT  |                     |                           | \$56,520.31  | \$56,520.31  | 3159                 |
| TOWN OF VAN ETTEN  | 0.0000%             | \$0.00                    | \$11,214.34  | \$11,214.34  | 63<br>10141          |
| TOWN OF VETERAN VILLAGE OF MILLPORT                                | 1.5323%             | \$490.26                  | \$31,505.24  | \$31,995.50  | 10144                |
|  | <b>]</b> ]          | \$42,327.14               | \$639,396.55 | \$681,723.69 | -<br>-<br>-          |



# CHEMUNG COUNTY ROUTE SLIP \* PERSONNEL REQUISITION

Resolution approving pursuant to Section 268 of the County Law, and increase in cost of an increase and improvement of the facilities of the Chemung County Sewer District No. 1 in and for said county at a new total maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000 (\$101,050,000 allocated to the District)

| Resolution #:  |                      |               |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
|--|----------------------|---------------|------------------------|--|------------|--|--|--|
| Slip Type:   | OTH                  | IER           |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| SEQRA status   |                      |               |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| State Mandated   | False                | False         |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| Explain action need                                      | ed or F              | osition reque | ested (justification): |  |            |  |  |  |
| CREATION:  |                      |               |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| Date/Time:   |                      |               | Department:            |  |            |  |  |  |
| 6/15/2022 1:18:01 PM                                     | 6/15/2022 1:18:01 PM |               |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
|  |                      |               |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| APPROVALS:   |                      |               |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| Date/Time:   | Approva              | l:            | Department:            |  |            |  |  |  |
|  |                      |               |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| ATTACHMENTS:   |                      |               |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| Name:  |                      | Description:  |                        |  | Type:      |  |  |  |
| Increase and improvemen  CCSD No. 1 -  \$235 000 000.pdf | <u>t -</u>           | Resolution    |                        |  | Cover Memo |  |  |  |

### RESOLUTION DATED JUNE 13, 2022

A RESOLUTION APPROVING, PURSUANT TO SECTION 268 OF THE COUNTY LAW, AN INCREASE IN COST OF AN INCREASE AND IMPROVEMENT OF THE FACILITIES OF THE SEWER DISTRICT NO. 1 IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY AT A NEW TOTAL MAXIMUM ESTIMATED COST OF \$235,000,000 (\$101,050,000 ALLOCATED TO THE DISTRICT).

WHEREAS, an increase and improvement of the facilities of the Sewer District No. 1 in and for said County pursuant to Section 268 of the County Law, consisting of improvements to and expansion of the Milton Street Wastewater Treatment Plant and decommissioning of the Lake Street Wastewater Treatment Plant including a conveyance system, pump station and other improvements all in connection with a master consolidation plan for treatment of wastewater, was previously approved at a maximum estimated cost of \$160,000,000, of which \$69,305,404 was allocated to the District; and

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to increase the project cost to \$235,000,000 and the amount allocated to the District to \$101,050,000;

WHEREAS, the estimated annual cost of such increase and improvement to the typical property in said District is now \$295.00, so that expenditures for such purpose may be made and contracts therefor may be let only with the consent of the State Comptroller; and

WHEREAS, said County Legislature duly adopted a resolution calling a public hearing to consider the aforesaid increased cost of such increase and improvement of facilities in accordance with the provisions of Section 268 of the County Law, said public hearing held at the County Legislature, 5th Floor, Hazlett Building, 203 Lake Street, in Elmira, New York, on the 6th day of June, 2022, at 6:55 o'clock P.M., Prevailing Time; and

WHEREAS, notice of said public hearing was duly published in the manner provided by law and proof thereof has been submitted to said County Legislature; and

WHEREAS, said County Legislature has duly considered the evidence given at said public hearing; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Legislature of the County of Chemung, New York, as follows:

Section 1. Upon the evidence given at the aforesaid public hearing, it is hereby found and determined that it is in the public interest to increase and improve the facilities of Sewer District No. 1 in and for said County pursuant to Section 268 of the County Law, as described in the preambles hereof, and

the same is hereby authorized at a new maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000, of which \$101,050,000 is allocated to the District.

Section 2. It is hereby determined that any expenditure to be made or contract to be let for the purpose authorized herein shall require the consent of the State Comptroller on behalf of the State of New York.

Section 3.



# CHEMUNG COUNTY ROUTE SLIP \* PERSONNEL REQUISITION

Resolution authorizing an additional \$31,744,596 bonds of the County of Chemung, New York, to pay costs of certain improvements for Chemung County Sewer District No. 1 in and for said County

| Resolution #:  |                      |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
|--|----------------------|-----------------------|----|------------|--|--|--|
| Slip Type:   | OTHER                |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| SEQRA status   |                      |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| State Mandated   | False                |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| Explain action needed                                  | d or Position req    | uested (justification | ): |            |  |  |  |
|  |                      |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| CREATION:  |                      |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| Date/Time:   |                      | Department:           |    |            |  |  |  |
| 6/15/2022 1:25:49 PM                                   | 6/15/2022 1:25:49 PM |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
|  |                      |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| APPROVALS:   |                      |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| Date/Time:   | Approval:            | Department:           |    |            |  |  |  |
|  |                      |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| ATTACHMENTS:   |                      |                       |    |            |  |  |  |
| Name: Description:                                     |                      |                       |    | Type:      |  |  |  |
| Resolutions - additional bonds - CCSD No. 1 (WWTP).pdf | Resolution           |                       |    | Cover Memo |  |  |  |

BOND RESOLUTION DATED JUNE 13, 2022.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN ADDITONAL \$31,744,596 BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF CHEMUNG, NEW YORK, TO PAY COSTS OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS FOR SEWER DISTRICT NO. 1 IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY.

WHEREAS, the County Legislature of the County of Chemung, New York, has heretofore, pursuant to Section 268 of the County Law, found it to be in the public interest to increase and improve the facilities of Sewer District No. 1 in said County, as more fully described in Section 1 of this resolution; and

WHEREAS, it is now desired to provide for the financing of such increase in cost of the increase and improvement pursuant to the Local Finance Law; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Legislature of the County of Chemung, New York, as follows:

Section 1. The increase and improvement of the facilities of the Sewer District No. 1 in the County of Chemung, New York, consisting of improvements to and expansion of the Milton Street Wastewater Treatment Plant and decommissioning of the Lake Street Wastewater Treatment Plant including a conveyance system, pump station and other improvements all in connection with a master consolidation plan for treatment of wastewater, at a maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000, is hereby authorized.

- Section 2. The maximum estimated cost of such improvements is now \$235,000,000, and the plan for the financing thereof shall consist of the following:
  - (i) By the issuance of the \$69,305,404 bonds authorized pursuant to a bond resolution dated October 12, 2021 for improvements to and expansion of the Milton Street Wastewater Treatment Plant and decommissioning of the Lake Street Wastewater Treatment Plant including a conveyance system, pump station and other improvements, all in connection with a master consolidation plan for treatment of wastewater; and
  - (ii) By the issuance of the \$31,744,596 bonds of said County herein authorized.

Section 3. It is hereby determined that the period of probable usefulness of the aforesaid objects or purposes is forty years, pursuant to subdivision 4 of paragraph a of Section 11.00 of the Local Finance Law, measured from the date of the first obligations issued therefor.

Section 4. The faith and credit of said County of Chemung, New York, are hereby irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on such bonds as the same respectively become

due and payable. There shall be annually apportioned and assessed upon the several lots and parcels of land within said District, in the manner provided by law, an amount sufficient to pay the principal and interest on said bonds as the same become due, but if not paid from such source, all the taxable real property in said County shall be subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate or amount, sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on said bonds as the same shall become due.

Section 5. Subject to the provisions of the Local Finance Law, the power to authorize the issuance of and to sell bond anticipation notes in anticipation of the issuance and sale of the bonds herein authorized, including renewals of such notes, is hereby delegated to the County Treasurer, the chief fiscal officer. Such notes shall be of such terms, form and contents, and shall be sold in such manner, as may be prescribed by said County Treasurer, consistent with the provisions of the Local Finance Law.

Section 6. All other matters except as provided herein relating to the bonds herein authorized including the date, denominations, maturities and interest payment dates, within the limitations prescribed herein and the manner of execution of the same, including the consolidation with other issues, and also the ability to issue bonds with substantially level or declining annual debt service, shall be determined by the County Treasurer, the chief fiscal officer of such County. Such bonds shall contain substantially the recital of validity clause provided for in Section 52.00 of the Local Finance Law, and shall otherwise be in such form and contain such recitals, in addition to those required by Section 51.00 of the Local Finance Law, as the County Treasurer shall determine consistent with the provisions of the Local Finance Law.

Section 7. The validity of such bonds and bond anticipation notes may be contested only if:

- Such obligations are authorized for an object or purpose for which said County is not authorized to expend money, or
- The provisions of law which should be complied with at the date of publication of this resolution are not substantially complied with, and an action, suit or proceeding contesting such validity is commenced within twenty days after the date of such publication, or
- 3) Such obligations are authorized in violation of the provisions of the Constitution.

Section 8. This resolution shall constitute a statement of official intent for purposes of Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2. Other than as specified in this resolution, no monies are, or are

reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside with respect to the permanent funding of the object or purpose described herein.

Section 9. This resolution, which takes effect immediately, shall be published in summary form in the official newspaper of such County, together with a notice of the Clerk of the County Legislature in substantially the form provided in Section 81.00 of the Local Finance Law.



# CHEMUNG COUNTY ROUTE SLIP \* PERSONNEL REQUISITION

Resolution approving, pursuant to Section 268 of County Law, an increase in cost of an increase and improvement of the facilities of the Chemung County Elmira Sewer District in and for said county at a new total maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000 (\$133,950,000 allocated to the District)

| Slip Type: OTHER  SEQRA status State Mandated False  Explain action needed or Position requested (justification):  CREATION:  Date/Time: Department: 6/15/2022 1:31:00 PM  APPROVALS: Date/Time: Approval: Department:    Approval: Department:                                      | Resolution #:        |                      |                |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
|--|----------------------|----------------------|----------------|------------------------|--|------------|--|--|--|
| Explain action needed or Position requested (justification):  CREATION:  Date/Time: Department:  6/15/2022 1:31:00 PM  APPROVALS:  Date/Time: Approval: Department:  ATTACHMENTS:  Name: Description: Type:  D Increase and Improvement - CCESD WWTP Project - Resolution Cover Memo | Slip Type:           | OTH                  | IER            |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| Explain action needed or Position requested (justification):    CREATION:  | SEQRA status         |                      |                |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| CREATION:  Date/Time:  6/15/2022 1:31:00 PM  APPROVALS:  Date/Time:   Department:    Approval:   Department:    ATTACHMENTS:  Name:   Description:   Type:    Discrease and Improvement - CCESD WWTP Project -   Resolution    Cover Memo  | State Mandated       | False                | False          |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| Date/Time: Department:  6/15/2022 1:31:00 PM  APPROVALS: Date/Time: Approval: Department:  ATTACHMENTS:  Name: Description: Type:  D Increase and Improvement - CCESD WWTP Project - Resolution Cover Memo   | Explain action need  | ed or P              | Position reque | ested (justification): |  |            |  |  |  |
| APPROVALS:  Date/Time: Approval: Department:  ATTACHMENTS:  Name: Description: Type:  Discrease and Improvement - CCESD WWTP_Project - Resolution Cover Memo   | CREATION:            |                      |                |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| APPROVALS:  Date/Time: Approval: Department:  ATTACHMENTS:  Name: Description: Type:  Description: Increase and Improvement - CCESD_WWTP_Project Resolution Cover Memo   | Date/Time:           |                      |                | Department:            |  |            |  |  |  |
| Date/Time: Approval: Department:  ATTACHMENTS:  Name: Description: Type:  Description: Increase and Improvement - CCESD_WWTP_Project - Resolution Cover Memo   | 6/15/2022 1:31:00 PM | 6/15/2022 1:31:00 PM |                |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| Date/Time: Approval: Department:  ATTACHMENTS:  Name: Description: Type:  Description: Increase and Improvement - CCESD_WWTP_Project - Resolution Cover Memo   |                      |                      |                |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| ATTACHMENTS:  Name: Description: Type:  Discrease and Improvement - CCESD_WWTP_Project - Resolution Cover Memo   | APPROVALS:           |                      |                |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| Name: Description: Type:  Description: Increase and Improvement - CCESD_WWTP_Project Resolution Cover Memo   | Date/Time:           | Approva              | l:             | Department:            |  |            |  |  |  |
| Name: Description: Type:  Description: Increase and Improvement - CCESD_WWTP_Project Resolution Cover Memo   |                      |                      |                |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| □ Increase and Improvement - CCESD_WWTP_Project Resolution Cover Memo  | ATTACHMENTS:         |                      |                |                        |  |            |  |  |  |
| CCESD_WWTP_Project Resolution Cover Memo   | Name:                |                      | Description:   |                        |  | Type:      |  |  |  |
|  | CCESD_WWTP_Project   |                      | Resolution     |                        |  | Cover Memo |  |  |  |

RESOLUTION NO.

**RESOLUTION DATED JUNE 13, 2022** 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING, PURSUANT TO SECTION 268 OF THE COUNTY LAW, AN INCREASE IN COST OF AN INCREASE AND IMPROVEMENT OF THE FACILITIES OF THE ELMIRA SEWER DISTRICT IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY AT A NEW TOTAL MAXIMUM ESTIMATED COST OF \$235,000,000 (\$133,950,000 ALLOCATED TO THE DISTRICT).

WHEREAS, an increase and improvement of the facilities of the Elmira Sewer District in and for said County pursuant to Section 268 of the County Law, consisting of improvements to and expansion of the Milton Street Wastewater Treatment Plant and decommissioning of the Lake Street Wastewater Treatment Plant including a conveyance system, pump station and other improvements all in connection with a master consolidation plan for treatment of wastewater, was previously approved at a maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000, of which \$90,694,596 was allocated to the District; and

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to increase the project cost to \$235,000,000 and the amount allocated to the District to \$133,950,000;

WHEREAS, the estimated annual cost of such increase and improvement to the typical property in said District is now \$295.00, so that expenditures for such purpose may be made and contracts therefor may be let only with the consent of the State Comptroller; and

WHEREAS, said County Legislature duly adopted a resolution calling a public hearing to consider the aforesaid increased cost of such increase and improvement of facilities in accordance with the provisions of Section 268 of the County Law, said public hearing held at the County Legislature, 5th Floor, Hazlett Building, 203 Lake Street, in Elmira, New York, on the 6th day of June, 2022, at 6:55 o'clock P.M., Prevailing Time; and

WHEREAS, notice of said public hearing was duly published in the manner provided by law and proof thereof has been submitted to said County Legislature; and

WHEREAS, said County Legislature has duly considered the evidence given at said public hearing; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Legislature of the County of Chemung, New York, as follows:

Section 1. Upon the evidence given at the aforesaid public hearing, it is hereby found and determined that it is in the public interest to increase and improve the facilities of the Elmira Sewer District

in and for said County pursuant to Section 268 of the County Law, as described in the preambles hereof, and the same is hereby authorized at a new maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000, of which \$133,950,000 is allocated to the District.

Section 2. It is hereby determined that any expenditure to be made or contract to be let for the purpose authorized herein shall require the consent of the State Comptroller on behalf of the State of New York.

Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

The adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which resulted as follows



# CHEMUNG COUNTY ROUTE SLIP \* PERSONNEL REQUISITION

Resolution authorizing an additional \$43,255,404 bonds of the County of Chemung, New York, to pay costs of certain improvements for the Chemung County Elmira Sewer District in and for said county

| Resolution #:  |           |               |                        |            |
|--|-----------|---------------|------------------------|------------|
| Slip Type:   | OTH       | IER           |                        |            |
| SEQRA status   |           |               |                        |            |
| State Mandated                                       | False     | ;             |                        |            |
| Explain action need                                  | ed or P   | osition reque | ested (justification): |            |
|  |           |               |                        |            |
| CREATION:  |           |               |                        |            |
| Date/Time:   |           |               | Department:            |            |
| 6/15/2022 1:36:16 PM                                 |           |               |                        |            |
|  |           |               |                        |            |
| APPROVALS:   |           |               |                        |            |
| Date/Time:   | Approva   | l:            | Department:            |            |
|  |           |               |                        |            |
| ATTACHMENTS:   |           |               |                        |            |
| Name: Description:                                   |           |               | Type:                  |            |
| Resolution - additional bonds - CCE WWTP_Project.pdf | <u>SD</u> | Resolution    |                        | Cover Memo |

RESOLUTION NO. \_\_\_\_\_

BOND RESOLUTION DATED JUNE 13, 2022.

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN ADDITONAL \$43,255,404 BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF CHEMUNG, NEW YORK, TO PAY COSTS OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE ELMIRA SEWER DISTRICT IN AND FOR SAID COUNTY.

WHEREAS, the County Legislature of the County of Chemung, New York, has heretofore, pursuant to Section 268 of the County Law, found it to be in the public interest to increase and improve the facilities of the Elmira Sewer District in said County, as more fully described in Section 1 of this resolution; and

WHEREAS, it is now desired to provide for the financing of such increase in cost of the increase and improvement pursuant to the Local Finance Law; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Legislature of the County of Chemung, New York, as follows:

Section 1. The increase and improvement of the facilities of the Elmira Sewer District in the County of Chemung, New York, consisting of improvements to and expansion of the Milton Street Wastewater Treatment Plant and decommissioning of the Lake Street Wastewater Treatment Plant including a conveyance system, pump station and other improvements all in connection with a master consolidation plan for treatment of wastewater, at a maximum estimated cost of \$235,000,000, is hereby authorized.

Section 2. The maximum estimated cost of such improvements is now \$235,000,000, and the plan for the financing thereof shall consist of the following:

- (i) By the issuance of the \$90,694,596 bonds authorized pursuant to a bond resolution dated October 12, 2021 for improvements to and expansion of the Milton Street Wastewater Treatment Plant and decommissioning of the Lake Street Wastewater Treatment Plant including a conveyance system, pump station and other improvements, all in connection with a master consolidation plan for treatment of wastewater; and
- (ii) By the issuance of the \$43,255,404 bonds of said County herein authorized.

Section 3. It is hereby determined that the period of probable usefulness of the aforesaid objects or purposes is forty years, pursuant to subdivision 4 of paragraph a of Section 11.00 of the Local Finance Law, measured from the date of the first obligations issued therefor.

Section 4. The faith and credit of said County of Chemung, New York, are hereby irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on such bonds as the same respectively become due and payable. There shall be annually apportioned and assessed upon the several lots and parcels of land within said District, in the manner provided by law, an amount sufficient to pay the principal and interest on said bonds as the same become due, but if not paid from such source, all the taxable real property in said County shall be subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate or amount, sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on said bonds as the same shall become due.

Section 5. Subject to the provisions of the Local Finance Law, the power to authorize the issuance of and to sell bond anticipation notes in anticipation of the issuance and sale of the bonds herein authorized, including renewals of such notes, is hereby delegated to the County Treasurer, the chief fiscal officer. Such notes shall be of such terms, form and contents, and shall be sold in such manner, as may be prescribed by said County Treasurer, consistent with the provisions of the Local Finance Law.

Section 6. All other matters except as provided herein relating to the bonds herein authorized including the date, denominations, maturities and interest payment dates, within the limitations prescribed herein and the manner of execution of the same, including the consolidation with other issues, and also the ability to issue bonds with substantially level or declining annual debt service, shall be determined by the County Treasurer, the chief fiscal officer of such County. Such bonds shall contain substantially the recital of validity clause provided for in Section 52.00 of the Local Finance Law, and shall otherwise be in such form and contain such recitals, in addition to those required by Section 51.00 of the Local Finance Law, as the County Treasurer shall determine consistent with the provisions of the Local Finance Law.

Section 7. The validity of such bonds and bond anticipation notes may be contested only if:

- Such obligations are authorized for an object or purpose for which said County is not authorized to expend money, or
- The provisions of law which should be complied with at the date of publication of this resolution are not substantially complied with, and an action, suit or proceeding contesting such validity is commenced within twenty days after the date of such publication, or
- 3) Such obligations are authorized in violation of the provisions of the Constitution.

Section 8. This resolution shall constitute a statement of official intent for purposes of Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2. Other than as specified in this resolution, no monies are, or are reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside with respect to the permanent funding of the object or purpose described herein.

Section 9. This resolution, which takes effect immediately, shall be published in summary form in the official newspaper of such County, together with a notice of the Clerk of the County Legislature in substantially the form provided in Section 81.00 of the Local Finance Law.



# CHEMUNG COUNTY ROUTE SLIP \* PERSONNEL REQUISITION

Resolution authorizing certain applications for and disbursement of Community Development Funds (Legislature)

| Resolution #:   |                       |                      |            |  |
|---|-----------------------|----------------------|------------|--|
| Slip Type:  | OTHER                 |                      |            |  |
| SEQRA status  |                       |                      |            |  |
| State Mandated  | False                 |                      |            |  |
| Explain action needs  | ed or Position reques | ted (justification): |            |  |
| CREATION:   |                       |                      |            |  |
| Date/Time:  |                       | Department:          |            |  |
| 6/17/2022 9:01:56 AM  |                       |                      |            |  |
| ADDDOVAL C.   |                       |                      |            |  |
| APPROVALS:  |                       |                      |            |  |
| Date/Time:  | Approval:             | Department:          |            |  |
|   |                       |                      |            |  |
| ATTACHMENTS:  |                       |                      |            |  |
| Name:   |                       | Description:         | Туре:      |  |
| Application - Comm Dev. Fund - Town of Catlin (2022).pdf                          |                       | Application          | Cover Memo |  |
| Application - Comm. Dev. Fund - City of Elmira 2022 (Woodlawn Cemetery) Burin.pdf |                       | Application          | Cover Memo |  |
| Application - Comm City of Elmira 2022 (Ma  |                       | Application          | Cover Memo |  |



# **Application for Community Development Funds**

The County of Chemung is accepting applications (requests) for grants to municipal corporations and special districts for projects that enhance the community during calendar year 2022. Not-for-profit corporations are not eligible for grants but are eligible to receive these funds to perform services for Chemung County to enhance the community. A County Legislator or the County Executive must sponsor all applications (requests) for funding. To view the Policy click here:

If you wish to apply for Community Development Funds complete the application below. Applications will be processed and reviewed quarterly throughout 2022.

**Project Description:** 

Activities considered eligible for funding include, but are not limited to, those that enhance the community in the areas of education, tourism, the arts, recreation, health, social services, public infrastructure, or conservation and preservation of historical and cultural resources.

The expected outcome of such projects is that residents throughout the Chemung County will receive benefits by utilizing these funds to support these important activities.

Full Legal Organizational Name Town Of Catlin

Address 1448 Chambers Rd.

Beaver Dams, NY, 14812

Organizational's Qualifications for

**Grant or Contract** 

**Municipal Corporation** 

Organization's Web-site address Town of Catlin

Organization's contact person and

contact information

LaVerne Phelps

**Phone Number** (607) 739-5598

Email catlinsupervisor@gmail.com

Legislative District 1 (Catlin, Veteran, Millport): John C. Pastrick

If your organization has a committee, board or other organizational structure, have they been made aware the your organization is making this application

Yes

Total amount of project \$3019.12

Amount of funding requested \$2911.50

Is your organization receiving any other source of grant funding? If yes, please indicate the funding source and amount

STAMP ITEMNU

Please provide a brief summary and/or project narrative of what the requested funding will be utilized for and how your program/agency assists with the overall goals and objectives of promoting community development throughout Chemung County. (Please attach any additional information you feel may be beneficial to the application.)

These funds will be used by the Tompkins Corners Fire company who's sole district is in the Town Of Catlin. They purchase 1 thermal Camera, 1 truck charger for camera, night sticks (5) and shipping cost

**Grantee** LaVerne Phelps

I hereby certify all statements and attachments to be truthful and accurate.

Loverne Phelps

**Date** Thursday, June 16, 2022



# **Application for Community Development Funds**

The County of Chemung is accepting applications (requests) for grants to municipal corporations and special districts for projects that enhance the community during calendar year 2022. Not-for-profit corporations are not eligible for grants but are eligible to receive these funds to perform services for Chemung County to enhance the community. A County Legislator or the County Executive must sponsor all applications (requests) for funding. To view the Policy click here:

If you wish to apply for Community Development Funds complete the application below. Applications will be processed and reviewed quarterly throughout 2022.

# Project Description:

Activities considered eligible for funding include, but are not limited to, those that enhance the community in the areas of education, tourism, the arts, recreation, health, social services, public infrastructure, or conservation and preservation of historical and cultural resources.

The expected outcome of such projects is that residents throughout the Chemung County will receive benefits by utilizing these funds to support these important activities.

| Full Legal Organ      | iizational Name 🍍 |   |
|-----------------------|-------------------|---|
| City of Elmira        |                   |   |
| Address *             |                   |   |
| 317 E. Church S       | Street            |   |
| Street Address        |                   |   |
|                       |                   | • |
| Street Address Line 2 |                   | 1 |
| Elmira                | NY                |   |
| C:453                 | State / Depuis    |   |

| Postal / Zip Code   |
|---|
|   |
| Organizational's Qualifications for Grant or Contract *   |
| Municipal Corporation   |
| O Special District  |
| ○ 501(c)(3)   |
| Tax-exempt organization with valid EIN from the IRS   |
| Other   |
| Organization's Web-site address *   |
| cityofelmira.net  |
|   |
| Organization's contact person and contact information *   |
| Daniel Mandell  |
| First Name Last Name  |
| Phone Number *  |
| 607 - 737-5644  |
| Area Code Phone Number  |
| Email *   |
| djmandell@cityofelmira.net  |
| example@example.com   |
|   |
| Legislative District  |
| District 9 (City of Elmira, Town of Elmira): John Burin 💙   |
| If your organization has a committee, board or other organizational structure, have they been made aware the your organization is making this application |
| Yes   |
| O No  |
| 25  |
| Total amount of project *   |
| \$2,000.00  |
|   |

STAMP\_ITEMNUMB

14901

Amount of funding requested \*

| \$2,000.00  |  |
|---|--|
| Is your organization receiving the funding source and amou      | g any other source of grant funding? If yes, please indicate nt *  |
| No  |  |
| will be utilized for and how yo<br>objectives of promoting comm | ary and/or project narrative of what the requested funding our program/agency assists with the overall goals and nunity development throughout Chemung County. (Please ation you feel may be beneficial to the application.) |
| Funds will be used by th<br>Cemetery with ongoing p             | e Friends of Woodlawn Cemetery to assist Woodlawn projects throughout the cemetery.  |
| Grantee *   |  |
| Daniel Mandell  |  |
| (Print Name)  I hereby certify all statements                   | s and attachments to be truthful and accurate.   |
| Daw Ufame   | sq A   |
| (Grantee Signature)   | <u>Clear</u>   |
| Date *  |  |
| 06-30-2022  |  |



# **Application for Community Development Funds**

The County of Chemung is accepting applications (requests) for grants to municipal corporations and special districts for projects that enhance the community during calendar year 2022. Not-for-profit corporations are not eligible for grants but are eligible to receive these funds to perform services for Chemung County to enhance the community. A County Legislator or the County Executive must sponsor all applications (requests) for funding. To view the Policy click here:

If you wish to apply for Community Development Funds complete the application below. Applications will be processed and reviewed quarterly throughout 2022.

# Project Description:

Activities considered eligible for funding include, but are not limited to, those that enhance the community in the areas of education, tourism, the arts, recreation, health, social services, public infrastructure, or conservation and preservation of historical and cultural resources.

The expected outcome of such projects is that residents throughout the Chemung County will receive benefits by utilizing these funds to support these important activities.

| Full Legal Orga       | nizational Name *                |  |
|-----------------------|----------------------------------|--|
| City of Elmira        |                                  |  |
| Address *             |                                  |  |
| 317 E. Church         | Street                           |  |
| Street Address        | A 00 00 00 00 00 A A A A A A A A |  |
|                       |                                  | NO - All Control and Control a |
| Street Address Line 2 |                                  |  |
| Elmira                | NY                               |  |
| ~ .                   |                                  |  |

| Postal / Zip Code  |
|--|
|  |
| Organizational's Qualifications for Grant or Contract *  |
| <ul> <li>Municipal Corporation</li> </ul>  |
| ○ Special District   |
| ○ 501(c)(3)  |
| Tax-exempt organization with valid EIN from the IRS  |
| Other  |
|  |
| Organization's Web-site address *  |
| cityofelmira.net   |
|  |
| Organization's contact person and contact information *  |
| Daniel Mandell   |
| First Name Last Name   |
|  |
| Phone Number *   |
| 607 - 737-5644   |
| Area Code Phone Number   |
|  |
| Email *  |
| djmandell@cityofelmira.net   |
| example@example.com  |
|  |
| Legislative District   |
| District 9 (City of Elmira, Town of Elmira): John Burin 💙  |
|  |
| If your organization has a committee, board or other organizational structure, have the been made aware the your organization is making this application |
| Yes  |
| ○ No   |
|  |
| Total amount of project *  |
| \$5,873.31   |
|  |

STAMP\_ITEMNUMB

14901

Amount of funding requested \*

| \$1,800.00   |                               |
|--|-------------------------------|
| Is your organization receiving any other source of grant funding? If yes, ple the funding source and amount *  | ase indicate                  |
| None   |                               |
| Please provide a brief summary and/or project narrative of what the request will be utilized for and how your program/agency assists with the overall gos objectives of promoting community development throughout Chemung Courattach any additional information you feel may be beneficial to the application | als and<br>nty. (Please       |
| This funding will be for Man2Man Forum Incorporated to support forums and annual Men's Health Day event which brings in individual throughout the area.  | t their healt<br>viduals from |
| Grantee *  |                               |
| Daniel Mandell   | -                             |
| (Print Name)   |                               |
| I hereby certify all statements and attachments to be truthful and accurate.   |                               |
| $\Omega \sim \Omega / 1$   |                               |

Clear

Date \*

06-28-2022



# CHEMUNG COUNTY ROUTE SLIP \* PERSONNEL REQUISITION

| ARPA Grant fol                        |             |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
|---------------------------------------|-------------|--------------|---------------------|------|--|-------|--|
| Resolution #: Slip Type: SEQRA status | ОТНІ        | ER           |                     |      |  |       |  |
| State Mandated                        | False       |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
| Explain action no                     | eeded or Po | osition req  | uested (justificati | on): |  |       |  |
| CREATION:                             |             |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
| Date/Time:                            |             |              | Department:         |      |  |       |  |
| 7/1/2022 2:43:51 PM                   |             |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
|                                       |             |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
| APPROVALS:                            |             |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
| Date/Time:                            | Approval:   |              | Department:         |      |  |       |  |
|                                       |             |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
|                                       |             |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
| ATTACHMENTS                           | <u>):</u>   |              |                     |      |  |       |  |
| ATTACHMENTS Name:                     |             | Description: |                     |      |  | Type: |  |